

 


 
The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please contact the  


Village Clerk’s Office, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 


 
 


AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 


Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 – 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 


May 6, 2019 
6:00 p.m. 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Roll Call 


 
4. Elect President Pro-Tem 


 
5. Minutes of Meetings – April 15, 2019 


 
6. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received 


from the public on items not on the agenda; however, no discussion is allowed and no action will be taken 
under citizen comments.) 


 
A.  Brian Massie Correspondence. 


 
7. Administrator’s Report 


 
8. New Business 


 
A. Consider approval of Amended and Restarted Water and Sanitary Sewer Service 


Agreement between the Village of Pleasant Prairie and the Village of Bristol. 


B. Consider approval of Ordinance #19-08 to amend Municipal Code §234-14 and 
§234-15 related to notices and abatement related to nuisances. 


C. Consider approval of Resolution #19-12 to initiate the name change of 120th Avenue 
(the West Frontage Road) in the Village to 122nd Avenue. 


D. Consider approval of Resolution #19-15 to initiate the discontinuance of a portion of 
128th Avenue north of 104th Street in Prairie Highlands Corporate Park. 


E. Consider and approve agent change for MOD Super-Fast Pizza. 


F. Consider and approve agent change for Cheddar’s Scratch Kitchen. 


G. Consider Resolution 19-13 proclaiming the month of May 2019 as Building Safety 
Month. 


H. Consider Resolution 19-14 designating the week of May 19 – 25, 2019 as national 
Public Works Week. 







Village Board Agenda 
May 6, 2019 
 
 


2 
 


 


I. Consider a disallowance of claim submitted by We Energies for a damaged unmarked 
gas line during excavation operations on December 6, 2018. 


J. Consider a disallowance of claim for a Notice of Injury and Claim for Damages by John 
and Idala Gasser for an incident which occurred on December 18, 2018. 


9. Village Board Comments 
 


10. Enter into Executive Session pursuant to Section 19.85(1)(e) Wis. Stats., to 
deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public property, the investing of public 
funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 
bargaining reasons require a closed session. 
 


11. Adjournment 







VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 


Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 - 39th Avenue 


Pleasant Prairie, WI 
April 15, 2019 


6:00 p.m. 
 
 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on April 15, 2019.  Meeting 
called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Kris Keckler, Mike 
Pollocoff, Dave Klimisch and Mike Serpe.  Also present were Nathan Thiel, Village Administrator; Tom 
Shircel, Assistant Village Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director; Kathy 
Goessl, Finance Director; Dave Smetana, Police Chief; Craig Roepke, Chief of Fire & Rescue; Matt 
Fineour, Village Engineer; John Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director; Carol Willke, Human Resources 
Director; Dan Honore', IT Director; Sandro Perez, Inspection Superintendent; and Jane C. Snell, Village 
Clerk. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. MINUTES OF MEETINGS - MARCH 11, 2019, MARCH 18, 2019 AND APRIL 1, 2019 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Move approval. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Is there any additions, corrections?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 
KLIMISCH MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE VILLAGE BOARD 


MEETINGS FOR MARCH 11, 2019, MARCH 18, 2019 AND APRIL 1, 2019 AS PRESENTED IN 
THEIR WRITTEN FORM; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
2 


 
5. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Jane Snell: 
 


Mr. President, there were no signups this evening. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Anyone wishing to speak under citizens’ comments this evening? 
 
6. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


I do have one item.  This last week I had the opportunity to visit with the Pleasant Prairie 
Women’s Club.  And during their meeting they were discussing about an opportunity that our 
administrative staff had presented to both them and the Historical Society.  And they are excited 
and enthusiastic.  And I would like to just share with the Board.  Recently the County approached 
the Village asking us to begin preparations for this coming year will be the 100th anniversary of 
Women’s Suffrage or the approval of the 19th Amendment of the Constitution.  And the County 
is in process of establishing some plans and asked for all the surrounding communities to also 
consider ideas for their community. 


 
Not jokingly, but as kind of a rudimentary thought process our staff had discussed maybe some 
nice ideas like perhaps planting a tree at all the polling locations or something of that nature to 
commemorate the event.  And we decided to bring the Pleasant Prairie Women’s Club to the table 
to just discuss thought processes.  And when I had pitched that idea originally they’re like, oh, we 
can do much better than that.  And I think I was the only male in the room, and so I slowly 
backed away, and it was amazing to see the collaboration and the thought processes that came 
forward. 


 
But as they were discussing they were talking about the history of that movement and the desire 
to highlight that history.  And so that then engaged us with the Pleasant Prairie Historical Society.  
I had the opportunity to talk about some initiatives that they were doing.  And the thought process 
came with the completion of the Dublin School and the potential for that lower level potentially 
serving as polling place for the Village in the future.  And that got excitement.  And the thought 
process then stemmed to being able to maybe do a ribbon cutting for the event and doing some 
type of celebration or some type of event to recognize Women’s Suffrage at the date that the 
County was proposing.  I think its August 26th. 


 
And so in any event going to the Women’s Club meeting this last Thursday there was a lot of 
excitement and enthusiasm, and they ultimately voted to proceed forward with planning and 
establishing an event.  And I know the Historical Society is working hard to create a plan to finish 
out the lower level of the Dublin School.  And I think that they’re intent on doing that.  And so, 
anyways, in any event I thought it was a great community initiative and engagement piece and 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
3 


was excited to see the level of engagement coming from both these organizations and just wanted 
to highlight and share and to encourage the Board to look forward to next August.  I don’t know, 
Jean, if you wanted to add anything or, John, if you wanted to add anything from the Historical 
Society.  But in general I was very much enthusiastic from the event last Thursday night with the 
Women’s Club.  So with that that’s all I have. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Jean, anything to add? 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Just that the Historical Society is very excited and anxious to finish things off and to open up the 
building next August.  And some of our first exhibits we are looking with our Dublin School 
manager as well as a number of other people to put together some really neat exhibits that 
highlight the Women’s Suffrage movement, the Pleasant Prairie Women’s Club that highlight 
other notable and influential women in Kenosha County over the last many, many years.  And so 
we just think as a cooperative effort it will really turn out to be a great event that day, and we’ll 
highlight just like Kenosha County will all the different things that have happened over the last 
100 years and the impact that women have made in the community.  So we just think that there’s 
lots of opportunity to do some really neat things. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Do we have any old voting machines left, Mike? 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


We actually have one.  It was donated to us by Snap-on Tools from the 1960s along with the story 
and the history.  Actually it was Don Wruck’s son and wife that donated through Snap-on along 
with some history.  And we think that that would be a very neat piece to have on display along 
with a really neat story in that lower level. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Do you have any instructions? 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Yes, we do have the instructions, and we do have some really neat photographs and things like 
that of people using the machine. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


They were almost like a sophisticated nail cutter.  If you got your fingers in there working on the 
levers it would snap. 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
4 


 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


We also were able to locate a number of photos and stories from the 1960s and ‘70s and pictures 
of Pleasant Prairie with people standing by these voting machines.  So we were able to start to 
pull a lot of these old pieces together.  So it will be a pretty unique display at least in the lower 
level.  I think it will be interesting how this all comes together over the next 18 months. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


President Steinbrink, I said that I was complete but there is one other item if I can interject and 
share with you.  Just to give you a quick update on the community collaborations initiative for the 
Village Green planning, I know that we’ve been very interested and curious to see how things are 
moving, and I just wanted to let you know that I believe that last Thursday the event had a bit of a 
breakthrough, and it was just really enjoyable to watch.  The different committees, subcommittees 
that were at the event had an opportunity to really engage with one another and talk about the 
thought processes that their groups have been discussing.  And it was just neat to see that there’s 
actually a plan that’s starting to formulate.   


 
And I know that our staff, both Tom and Jean, have gotten inundated with several more emails 
this week and last week.  I’ve received a few just asking some really good questions.  And so I 
just want to highlight that initiative is moving forward I think in a very good a positive direction.  
This week they’re hoping to do a similar task that they did at the first meeting where they took a 
map, and they kind of put their thoughts onto the map.  It will be interesting to see, they’re going 
to kind of do a very similar exercise and see how that’s developed or where they’re at now in the 
process.  And so I just want to let you all be aware that things are moving very well, and I’m just 
excited for the momentum that’s starting to pick up.  We did tear the building down thanks to 
John and his crew. 


 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 


My staff is very excited about special projects like this.  So any time there’s an opportunity they 
always jump right on it.  Yeah, we were able to take a lot of the material and recycle it I guess is 
the one thing I’d like to add.  There was a lot of metal in there that got brought to the scrap yard, 
a lot of concrete that will be turned into aggregate.  And actually a very minor amount of stuff 
actually ended going to the landfill. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


That concludes Item 6, Administrator’s Report. 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of lot line 


adjustment by owners of properties located at 8415 104th Avenue and 8436 103rd 
Avenue. 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
5 


 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Mr. President, this is a lot line adjustment at the request of Scott Kanalakis and Bradley Bohat 
owners of the properties located at 8415 104th Avenue and 8436 103rd Avenue.  The petitioners 
are requesting to do a lot line adjustment.  In working with their respective attorneys it was 
discovered that the land contract dated September 15, 1992 accepted a portion of the legal 
description of the properties, but the 1995 deed and satisfaction omitted this exception.  
Therefore, a fence was erected in 1992 along the lot lines described in the land contract.  Since 
the date both adjoining property owners have used their respective properties as if the fence line 
were their common lot line, so both property owners have now agreed to adjust the common 
property line to reflect the legal description in the land contract and respective owners use 
thereafter. 


 
The properties are zoned R-5, Urban Single Family Residential District.  And both lots will 
continue to exceed the minimum lot area of 10,000 square feet as required by the R-5 District.  
The lot line adjustment conforms with both the Land Division and Development Control 
Ordinance as well as the Zoning Ordinance.  And all properties agree and are requesting to have 
the lot line adjusted between the properties. 


 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Move approval of the lot line adjustment. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second for approval of lot line adjustment.  Any further discussion?  Those in 
favor? 


 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 


KLIMISCH MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION AND APPROVE THE LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT BY OWNERS OF 
PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 8415 104TH AVENUE AND 8436 103RD AVENUE; SECONDED 
BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
6 


 B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Master 
Conceptual Plan for construction of 5,800 square foot synagogue to be known as 
Chabad of Kenosha. 


 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, this is a request for the Master Conceptual Plan for the 
Chabad of Kenosha.  This is at the request of Mark Eberle.  They’re looking for a 5,800 square 
foot synagogue as a place of worship.  The project initially was advanced to the Village Board in 
December of 2017.  The Board at that time approved a conceptual -- excuse me, a Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment as well as a Prairie Lake Neighborhood Plan Amendment for the project.  This 
evening they are requesting a Master Conceptual Plan.  A few modifications were made since that 
last discussion.  There is no additional connection to 88th Avenue, and their main connection is 
going to be going through the property owned by the Village of Pleasant Prairie north towards 
68th Street. 


 
As you know, the synagogue which is approximately 5,800 square feet will include a social hall, 
library, classrooms, offices, kosher kitchen, mikveh for ritual immersion and will include two 
guest stay rooms.  The synagogue will typically be open to the public between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. 
with main activities and worship being on Saturday mornings between 10 a.m. and 1:30 p.m., and 
evening classes that will be held on the property would end before 9 o’clock p.m.  The existing 
home and detached garage are intended to remain on the property and can be used for the clergy, 
caretaker or a place for members to spend the weekend due to religious driving restrictions. 


 
What we’ve indicated to them is that the home cannot be rented separately to another family that 
is not part of the property because it is intended to be an integral part of the planned development 
of this particular project.  To the east of this development is a series of wetlands and conservancy 
areas, and those areas for the most part will remain untouched.  There’s a small area as you can 
see that will be filled in order to gain access to 68th Street, and a wet retention basin will be 
created to the south.  There’s a future two story residence that is anticipated to be constructed as a 
parsonage home.  The future 2,400 to 3,500 square foot parsonage home would be for the clergy. 


 
It is anticipated that they would have one full-time and four part-time employees.  The prayer hall 
is proposed to have regular seating for up to 50 on a regular basis, although on special occasions 
they could seat up to 100 people.  This is just a brief floor plan of the synagogue building, again, 
that we just discussed.  And then as shown on the site plan the parsonage home is to the rear of 
the existing home and garage on the property.  Outlot 1 of the CSM is owned by the Village.  
Again, this is an area that collects stormwater from portions of 88th Avenue and 68th Street and 
outlets into the wetlands to the southeast of the Village’s property.  There will be 25 parking 
spaces and two handicapped accessible parking spaces.  And additional parking is being provided 
at each of the two homes for additional overflow parking. 


 
One of the things we talked about at the Plan Commission meeting is that public infrastructure 
does need to be extended to service the property.  Municipal water will be extended in 88th 
Avenue in the future as part of the Wisconsin DOT Highway 50 reconstruction project.  The 
Village is intending to extend this municipal water in advance of the Highway 50 project.  







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
7 


However, the water main is really dependent on when the DOT’s project moves forward because 
they will be completing the necessary acquisition for right of way which will be needed for us to 
be able to install the municipal water.  Properties fronting the water main extension including this 
property will have a special assessment for this associated frontage costs.  So as you can see there 
is quite a bit of an extension of that municipal water north of 74th going all the way north to this 
property and along with getting that service to other properties in this particular area. 


 
The land use plan amendment this is an Institutional Governmental land use for this particular 
property.  The areas that are now designated as wetlands will be moved into that other open space 
category.  Dimensions variations as they’re requesting through the PUD include to reduce the 
setback for the wetlands for the parking area from the required 25 feet to 10 feet, and to reduce 
the side setback to the north so that the reduction can be going from 25 feet to 15 feet.  Again, 
there’s the Village lift station, sanitary sewer lift station that accesses off of 68th Street just at that 
east side of 88th Avenue, and that will remain intact for the property. 


 
They’ve presented some initial concept drawings for their building.  Again, we are continuing to 
work through their project.  The community benefits that they’ve identified would be to reduce 
the monument sign not to exceed five feet in height, to enhance some of their building design 
with greater architectural aesthetics, to provide additional landscaping on the side, to equip the 
main building with a fire sprinkler system, and to install and maintain a DSIS system for the 
property. 


 
With that the Village Plan Commission recommended conditional approval of the Conceptual 
Plan for Chabad subject to the comments and conditions.  Again, one of the things to note is that 
one of the specific public infrastructure items that they must have in order for this to develop is 
the municipal water.  They do intend to develop the site in four different phases so it should not 
impact them too significantly as long as the project begins in the next two years. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Jean, what is the building makeup going to be with the materials used? 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Right now they’re showing like CMU or concrete block for the building.  And I’m not sure about 
the other vertical.  I think that that is vertical siding, so we are working with them on a couple of 
different things with respect to their materials.  The intent is to have it blend in a little bit with the 
residential character of the neighborhood. 


 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


If that second building develops at some point how does that impact the current house and garage 
that are on the property? 


 
 
 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
8 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


So they have multiple options, one of which is to split off and create a Certified Survey Map and 
detach it from the rest of the property.  Another option is as part of the PUD to have multiple 
buildings related to the synagogue and its property such as having other members of the parish or 
a caretakers or somebody else that occupies that particular structure as well as the back building 
for the clergy. 


 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


So there could be two residences on the property? 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


There could. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Beside the PUD? 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


There could be as part of a PUD.  And because this is an institutionally zoned in an institutional 
land use and there’s no restriction on the number of buildings that you could have on that 
property. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Jean, I would encourage you to work with them on a little bit more of a character of the building 
that they’re proposing.  It looks a little bit plain. 


 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


And they understand.  I mean it’s not intended to begin for a couple of years yet so we will work 
with them. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Okay.  I’d move approval of the Master Conceptual Plan. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second. 
 
 
 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
9 


John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
AND APPROVED THE MASTER CONCEPTUAL PLAN FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 5,800 
SQUARE FOOT SYNAGOGUE TO BE KNOWN AS CHABAD OF KENOSHA; SECONDED BY 
KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Resolution 


#19-11 to initiate a zoning text amendment to re-evaluate specific conditional use 
permit requirements related to setbacks for utility substations. 


 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, the Resolution 19-11 is a resolution to initiate a zoning 
text amendment.  The Board can initiate a petition for an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance 
which could also include the rezoning of property or a change in the zoning district boundaries or 
changes in the text of the ordinance.  The Village staff is proposing to re-evaluate the specific 
conditional use permit requirement related to setbacks for utility substations. 


 
The Village Board by this resolution is only initiating and petitioning to re-evaluate the specific 
conditional use requirements, and they are requesting them to have the Village staff evaluate the 
text as it pertains to conditional uses and setbacks.  And the Board is not by this resolution 
making any determination regarding the proposal that we are going to be bringing to the Plan 
Commission and to the Board for public hearing, but is allowing the process to begin so that the 
staff can make some recommendations to the conditional use permit requirements. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Jean, what is the definition of a utility substation? 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


So a utility substation could be anything from a sanitary sewer lift station to a utility substation 
for AT&T or any other type of utility. 


 
 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
10 


John Steinbrink: 
 


So it’s an outbuilding for any project? 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Right, an outbuilding, an accessory.  It’s a small, literally it’s a building used for utility purposes. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Would this modification support the previous item on the agenda in regards to lift station location 
next to the Chabad property? 


 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


It could.  However, at this point we were looking at street yard setbacks, but we certainly could 
evaluate it pertaining to side or rear setbacks as well. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Are there any other users that are looking for this? 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


There is one user, the Village.  We have a couple of grandfathered situations of existing 
substations, and while we provided some reduced setbacks in the past, we would like to just put a 
provision in the conditional use permit that it can be evaluated on a case-by-case basis with 
respect to replacement or additional substations so that they could be in similar sight lines as 
opposed to having one set back much further than another. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I move approval of Resolution 19-11. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
11 


John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 


POLLOCOFF MOVED TO CONCUR WITH PLAN COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION AND APPROVED RESOLUTION #19-11 TO INITIATE A ZONING 
TEXT AMENDMENT TO RE-EVALUATE SPECIFIC CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO SETBACKS FOR UTILITY SUBSTATIONS; SECONDED BY 
KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 D. Consider award of contract to Southport Engineered Systems for the Heating, 


Ventilation & Air Conditioning (HVAC) Services for various Village of Pleasant 
Prairie Buildings and Facilities. 


 
Tom Shircel: 
 


Thank you, Mr. President, and Board members.  Like you just mentioned tonight before the 
Board is to consider an award of contract for HVAC services for the Village of Pleasant Prairie 
buildings and facilities.  As some brief background, for numerous years Martin Petersen 
Corporation has been providing these HVAC services for the Village.  As an example it’s been 
doing those services for the RecPlex since its inception and for the Village Hall and the Prange 
facility for the past 20 years.  Back in 2012 and 2015 the Village Board did award this contract to 
Martin Petersen for two year base contracts.  And both of those contracts were awarded for an 
additional year pursuant to a Village extension option.  So at this time the contract has expired, 
and it’s time for us to consider a new contract. 


 
So with expiration of the current Martin Petersen contracts, on March 15, 2019 the Village 
released RFP Number 19-01 for HVAC services for the Village’s various buildings and facilities.  
The RFP was distributed to ten HVAC contractors in the greater Kenosha area.  And those were 
Accutemp Mechanical, GHC Mechanical, Grunau Company, Illingworth-Kilgust Mechanical, 
Kenosha Heating & Cooling, Lee Plumbing, Heating, Cooling & Electric, Martin Petersen 
Company, Pieper Electric, Southport Engineered Systems and United Mechanical, so ten 
companies in all. 


 
In general pursuant to the RFP responses were to provide a proposal to the Village for HVAC 
services for these buildings and facilities including cost rates for each of the facilities.  The 
HVAC services will include but are not limited to equipment installations, renovations, remodels, 
repairs, preventative maintenance and the general maintenance of all these HVAC facilities.  So 
the facilities involved to be services are the Village Hall, Fire and Rescue Stations #1, Fire and 
Rescue #2, the RecPlex, Roger Prange Municipal Building, The Public Works Storage Building, 
Baby-U, Wruck Beach Pavilion and various sewer facilities which are lift stations located around 
the Village and water facilities including water towers, reservoirs and booster stations. 


 
So in response to the RFP we sent out back in early March, on March 26, 2019 the Village 
received three proposals.  Those are from Illingworth-Kilgust in West Allis, Martin Petersen here 
in Kenosha and Southport Engineered Systems in Caledonia.  So up on the screen and in your 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
12 


memo I put together a summary and comparison of each of the three responses.  I won’t go 
through it in detail, but it refers to the PM charge.  In one of the columns it talks about the work 
rates per hour, for regular, overtime, Sunday and holiday work and also emergency work rates per 
hour, again, for regular, OT, Sunday and holiday work.  It talks about material markup costs, 
response times, subcontractor markups and rates and also warranties. 


 
So based on the three responses that the Village received, the Village staff did do an internal staff 
review of the three RFP responses, and the staff believes based on those proposals that Southport 
Engineered Systems is the best qualified, most reasonable candidate at the most responsible cost.  
I’ll go through the reasons for recommending Southport for the HVAC services. 
Southport offers the lowest annual fee for preventative maintenance at $27,250.  Southport offers 
the lowest standard hourly work rates at $89 per hour and the lowest emergency hour work rates 
at $116 per hour.  It’s important to note that if the Village Board does approve Southport, upon 
the Village and Southport entering into an HVAC contract, Southport’s hourly work rates will be 
$89 across the board, so that means whether it’s overtime or regular it would be $89 across the 
board. 


 
Moving on, Southport’s office is located on I-94 in Caledonia which is about 30 minutes away.  
As you know, Martin Petersen Corporation company is in Kenosha, and Illingworth-Kilgust is 
located in West Allis about 50 minutes away.  And it’s important to notice that all three of these 
companies do have technicians throughout the immediate area.  Southport and Martin Petersen 
have the lowest service response times for emergency service calls at one hour.  Martin Petersen 
has the lowest service response time for standard calls at one hour.  Southport along with Martin 
Petersen offers a one year warranty on materials and labor.  Southport along with Martin Petersen 
offers a ten percent markup on equipment and materials for wholesale rates. 


 
And so doing a comparison between the two of the lowest bids which were Martin Petersen and 
Southport I put together a potential savings if Southport were chosen by the Village Board.  So 
you’ve gotten Martin Petersen’s preventative maintenance fee at $54,700 per year.  So if you 
multiply that by the two year contract that would be just over $109,000 for the contract term.  
Whereby Southport their bid came in at $27,240 so multiply that by two years and their contract 
term is just over $54,000.  So that’s a savings of just almost $55,000 over two years for the two 
proposals. 


 
Martin Petersen’s work rates are $112, $154 and $195 per hour, again, based on regular, overtime 
and holiday work.  And they do offer as in the past contracts a ten percent preferred customer 
reduction in those costs.  Whereby Southport’s work rates as I mentioned earlier are a flat $89 per 
hour.  So, again, the savings on a per hour basis would be, if the Village Board were to choose 
Southport, would be $23 per hour savings, $65 per hour savings and $106 per hour savings. 


 
So based on the three RFPs submitted and for the reasons I just gave, the Village staff 
recommends that the Village Board award a base contract to Southport Engineered Systems as the 
lowest responsible bid in the amount of $27,250 for the provision of HVAC services for the 
Village.  The Village Administrator is further authorized to execute necessary and reasonable 
additions and subtractions to this contract for fees, expenses or additional work and/or service 
requested.  Again, Southport Engineered Systems is recommended for $27,250 base.   







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
13 


 
I realize that the Village has been with Martin Petersen for quite a long time like I said, and there 
probably will be a learning curve should the Board approve Southport Engineered Systems.  I 
know we did have the gentleman in from Southport in last week.  He toured the RecPlex with Mr. 
Patrizzi and Sandro.  So he was shown the RecPlex which is our most complicated system 
obviously.  And he gave every indication that Southport was able to handle the job.  If you have 
any questions I’m here to answer them. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Have we ever dealt with Southport in the past? 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 


I believe we have, but to the details of that I don’t know. 
 


[Inaudible] 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


And no problems, Craig? 
 
[Inaudible] 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


There’s significant cost savings here, there’s no question about it. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Based on the information that Tom has presented I think Southport is the lowest and most 
responsible bidder.  I think we’re obligated to award that contract to Southport Engineered 
Systems for the base amount of $27,250 plus the hourly amount as specified in the contract. 


 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Does it work if they don’t respond within an hour on an emergency only because they’re in 
Caledonia instead of Kenosha? 


 
Tom Shircel: 
 


I think in the past there’s been some wiggle room on that.  I know Martin Petersen has been 
responsive in their one hour time frame.  But I think it needs to be a little gray area there, and I 
think they’d be very responsive.  Just to add to that if I could add one more thing, we had a call to 
a reference of Southport, and that was Froedtert South Hospital.  They actually switched from 
Martin Petersen not long ago to Southport.  And Peter Moulter at Froedtert had nothing but good 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
14 


thing to say about Southport.  He mentioned they so far had a cost savings he’s estimated at about 
40 percent going from Martin Petersen to Southport.  Now, I’m sure there’s also the other side of 
the coin that someone could tell you a different story regarding Southport and Martin Petersen 
and a switch, but we did get a positive recommendation from Pete Moulter at Froedtert South 
Hospital. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Was that a motion, Mike? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Yes. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Do we have a second? 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 


POLLOCOFF MOVED TO APPROVE THE AWARD OF CONTRACT TO 
SOUTHPORT ENGINEERED SYSTEMS FOR THE HEATING, VENTILATION & AIR 
CONDITIONING (HVAC) SERVICES FOR VARIOUS VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES; SECONDED BY KLIMISH; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 E. Consider and approve Letter of Credit Reduction No. 2 for The Cottages at Village 


Green, LLC - Phase 2. 
 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, this evening I bring before you the LOC reduction 
number 2 for The Cottages generally located just to the north of 165, a little bit west of 39th 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
15 


Avenue.  The work that we are approving LOC reduction for is mainly water main, storm sewer 
with a little bit of public grading and right of way.  The total amount of the request was just over 
$318,000.  Per the developer’s agreement we do hold a ten percent retainage for any warranty 
work that needs to be done which would leave a total amount dispersed of $286,335.05.  So I am 
recommending that reduction to the letter of credit at this time, and I can answer any questions 
you may have. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


So moved. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Any discussion or questions?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 


SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE THE LETTER OF CREDIT REDUCTION NO. 2 FOR 
THE COTTAGES AT VILLAGE GREEN, LLC - PHASE 2; SECONDED BY POLLOCOFF; 
MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 F. Consider Resolution #19-10 designating April 14-20, 2019 as National Public Safety 


Telecommunications Week. 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Good evening, Mr. President and members of the Board.  This week, April 14th to the 20th has 
been designated across the country to honor national public safety telecommunications week.  We 
are fortunate in the Village of Pleasant Prairie to have eight dedicated thanks to you full-time 
dispatchers who work in this center around the clock and around the calendar.  They serve as not 
only the needs of the police department but the fire department in the off hour alarm monitoring 
for public works.  You know you’re a good speaker when half your audience leaves right before 
you get up here.  I knew that was going to happen.  Luckily for them I asked them if they wanted 
to speak and they said no. 


 
But I’d also recognize Fire Chief Roepke and Public Works Director Steinbrink as recipients of 
the service that this dynamic group of employees serves.  I’d also like to recognize their 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
16 


representative here tonight Ashley Busser and her kids.  Those are not new dispatchers, those are 
her kids, and just identify how lucky we are in the Village to have these group of employees who 
kind of go as the voice of the Village.  They’re not seen, they’re not recognized.  No one dresses 
up as a dispatcher for Halloween.  But they probably should for as much work as they put 
through.  So if you would I would ask for your consideration on this resolution tonight. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Chief, people don’t realize the amount of stress associated with a dispatcher’s job.  When that 
phone rings they have no idea when they pick it up what’s on the other end.  And you see the 
paper all the time on the things that are happening all across the country including our own 
Village, homicides, bad accidents, medical conditions, fires.  Dispatchers are special, and they 
don’t get the recognition that they really deserve because of the amount of work that they do and 
what they have to put up with. 


 
Chief Smetana: 
 


I would certainly agree with that.  I think their communication skills need to be perfect.  I don’t 
think -- we demand professionalism, you’re never going to get perfection, but this group of 
employees comes as close to that as I’ve seen. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


With that I would move approval of Resolution 19-10. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  And I think for as long as I can remember our dispatchers have 
made our Village and Town unique from other towns and villages throughout the county.  And 
they’re the reason we can be responsive to so many things, as you say whether its police, fire, 
rescue or public works emergencies.  And having them there 24 hours a day is just unbelievable.  
I couldn’t imagine functioning without our own public dispatchers. 
 


Chief Smetana: 
 


I couldn’t either.  They add a person touch to public safety. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Any further discussion? 
 
 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
17 


Nathan Thiel: 
 


If I could just add real quick there’s probably nothing more frustrating than not being at the scene 
and yet having to maintain a level of control and maintain the line of communication.  I know just 
with my toddlers sometimes trying to maintain control and I’m there at the scene and it’s frantic, I 
just want to commend our employees and our staff, and also recognize the Village Board and 
thank them for the modification that we made this year in moving from part time to full time.  I 
think that that was a wise move and beneficial for the organization as a whole and these 
employees as a whole. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I agree they represent the Village very well.  In all my years I can count maybe on one hand the 
time there was a problem with how the public was treated.  I agree we’ve always wanted to, 
maybe not always, but quite a long time we wanted to make that full time, and I’m really glad 
that happened.  I fully support Resolution 19-10. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


And we think back to what dispatch required as and what we now require of these folks to do, and 
the advances we’ve made in all of our departments.  And it’s their responsibility to make sure 
these things happen and they do. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Just for a point of reference, in my history with the police department I can honestly say one of 
the best dispatchers we’ve ever had was Kris Keckler’s father, outstanding.  Calm, cool, 
intelligent, articulate.  Can you image what would have happened if the phone rings with an 
emergency and the dispatcher gets as excited as the person that’s on the other end?  Can’t say 
enough about the job they do, and his dad was one of the best. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Just the way he was at home, right? 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Yeah, enough practice, yeah. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


I went to school with Kris’s dad, and he’s a great guy. 
 


Chief Smetana: 
 


Thank you very much. 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
18 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Thank you, Chief.  Okay, we have a motion and a second I believe.  Any further discussion?  
Those in favor? 


 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 


SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE RESOLUTION #19-10 DESIGNATING APRIL 14-20, 
2019 AS NATIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY TELECOMMUNICATIONS WEEK; SECONDED BY 
KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 G. Consider various boards/commission appointments. 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


So in your packet you have the list of commissions and appointments for this coming year.  I 
won’t belabor it.  Well, I probably should read into the record those that we’re recommending.  
So for the Plan Commission, Mike Pollocoff, Wayne Goessl, Judith Juliana, John Skalbeck and 
Brock Williamson.  John Skalbeck and Brock Williamson will serve as alternates.  Their term 
will begin May of this year, and then the alternates will extend to 2020.  And those who were 
regulars or full time would be a two year term.  Hopefully that was clear enough.  The record is 
going to be a little confuddled I’m afraid. 


 
In the Park Commission we’re presenting Micky Day, William Mills and Brock Williamson for a 
two year term until 2021. And then Jim Bandura is alternate 1 and Chris Bilik is alternate 2 and 
their term will be until 2020.  For the Board of Review Bill Morris serving until 2024.  Police and 
Fire Commission will be Larry Nelson who will serve until 2024.  And then Becky, I’m going to 
not do her last name correctly, but Matoska-Mentink, she’ll be serving until 2022.  She is 
replacing the vacancy of Christine Genthner who resigned earlier this year.  And then for Board 
of Appeals, Dwayne Pinon, Samara or Sammy Lancia and Dragan Obradovich, they’ll be serving 
until 2022.  Those are the commission appointments that are being presented this evening. 


 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Move approval of the appointments to the committees for the terms listed. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Second. 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
19 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 


KLIMISH MOVED TO APPROVE THE VARIOUS BOARDS/COMMISSION 
APPOINTMENTS; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
8. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


One note, if you read the obituaries Ray Resch passed away, and Ray was one of our really 
dedicated poll workers who has been with us a long time.  We miss his passing, and between him 
and Roberta Anderson they were a lively team at the polls and kept things moving.  And him and 
Roberta did a lot of traveling in the last few years and Ray was a great guy, and he’s going to be 
missed.  Anything else? 


 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Move to adjourn. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second for adjournment.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 







Village Board Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
 


 
20 


 
SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY POLLOCOFF; 


MOTION CARRIED 5-0 AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:45 P.M. 
 











MEMORANDUM 


To:        Village President and Village Trustees 


From:   Nathan R. Thiel 


Date:    May 6, 2019 


Re:       Pleasant Prairie and Bristol Water and Sewer Agreement 


 


 


9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.925.6721 • Fax 262.694.4734 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 
 


Office of the Village Administrator 


On November 19, 2018, the Village of Pleasant Prairie entered into an agreement with the Village of Bristol to supply 


wholesale water to the Bristol Utility District 5 (BUD5). This agreement provided mutual benefit to both the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie and Bristol. On the part of the Pleasant Prairie, it allowed utilities to be extended to 68 acres of property 


the Village owns within Bristol boundaries, improving value and marketability of the property. Pleasant Prairie is 


currently under contract for the sale of the 68 acres Village owns adjacent to the Prairie Highlands Corporate Park but 


within jurisdiction of Bristol.  


However, when Bristol approached the Public Service Commission (PSC) to grant permission for the water main 


extensions and wholesale delivery to the BUD5 area, the PSC prompted the question, and encouraged both 


municipalities to consider simplifying the model by having Pleasant Prairie service the area as retail customers. As both 


entities have revaluated this option, there were several benefits: 


1. It would cut out additional layer of administration 


2. It would eliminate the perceived need for a meter station, booster pump, and an additional water tower. 


3. It offered a greater sense of control and simplified the relationship between the two municipalities to mitigating 


the potential for future conflict between municipalities. 


4. Ultimately, the result will be a reduced cost to the end user. 


This proposed agreement is patterned after current development practices in which the developer constructs the main, 


Pleasant Prairie inspects, the developer upon completion provides an easement and dedicates the mains to Pleasant 


Prairie, and then Pleasant Prairie would maintain the mains moving forward. Bristol is responsible for all costs and 


connections, but may pass those costs to the developer.  


This proposed agreement would necessitate Pleasant Prairie to make an adjustment to its ordinance, which currently 


restricts Pleasant Prairie to provide water service only property owners within the Pleasant Prairie jurisdiction. However, 


this practice is not without precedent. Currently, Kenosha supplies retail water to properties with the Pleasant Prairie 


jurisdiction. This agreement also triggered evaluating the provision of retail sewer services in conjunction. The provision 


of sewer services will prevent confusion and establish a single utility billing. As a result, the proposed agreement also 


amends the 1997 Settlement and Cooperative Agreement between Pleasant Prairie and Bristol to allow provision of 


retail sewer services. 


This proposed agreement is conditional on both the PSC approval and the Village of Bristol entering into a developer’s 


agreement with a perspective purchaser of the 68 acres Pleasant Prairie owns. It should be noted, that Bristol has 


already modified the zoning and land use of the 68 acres, to the satisfaction of Pleasant Prairie and the current 


perspective buyer of the 68 acres.  


Staff recommends adoption of the proposed agreement as presented.  







 


QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


AMENDED AND RESTATED WATER 
AND SANITARY SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT 


This Amended and Restated Water and Sanitary Sewer Service Agreement (as amended 


from time to time, this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the _____ day of _______________, 


2019, by and between the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin (“VOPP”), the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie Water Utility (“PPWU”), the Pleasant Prairie Sewer Utility (“PPSU”) (the 


VOPP, the PPSU and the PPWU are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Prairie Parties”), 


and the Village of Bristol, Wisconsin (“Bristol”).  Bristol and the Prairie Parties are together 


referred to herein as the “Parties.”  This Agreement is an amendment and restatement of the 


Water Service Agreement dated December 10, 2018, and executed by the Parties on November 


19, 2018, and December 10, 2018 (“Wholesale Water Agreement”), which was itself an 


amendment to the 1997 Settlement and Cooperative Agreement between VOPP, PPWU, Bristol 


and various other affiliated parties as further described in Section 39 hereof (as amended from 


time to time by and between the Parties and successor and related entities, the “1997 Cooperative 


Agreement”).  Except as specifically amended herein, the 1997 Cooperative Agreement shall 


continue pursuant to its terms. 


RECITALS 


A. PPWU now provides retail water service within the Village of Pleasant Prairie, 


and purchases water wholesale from the Kenosha Water Utility (“KWU”) pursuant to the 1997 


Cooperative Agreement for Orderly Development by and between the City of Kenosha and 


Kenosha Water Utility, and Village of Pleasant Prairie, Pleasant Prairie Water Utility (as 


amended from time to time, the “1997 KWU Agreement”); and 


B. PPSU now provides retail sanitary sewer service within the Village of Pleasant 


Prairie and purchases wholesale sanitary sewer capacity from KWU and discharges sewage to 


the KWU sewage treatment plant pursuant to the 1997 KWU Agreement; and 


C. Section 29 of the 1997 KWU Agreement provides that all plans and specifications 


for sewage conveyance and water distribution and storage facilities to be located within the 


Village Supervised Drainage Area (as defined in the 1997 KWU Agreement) and through which 


KWU sewer or water service will be provided, must be approved by KWU before construction of 


such facilities; and 







 


2 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


D. VOPP and Bristol are parties to the 1997 Cooperative Agreement providing, 


among other things, intergovernmental cooperation and the possible provision of permanent 


municipal water and sanitary sewer service by VOPP to Bristol; and 


E. Section 4(b)(14) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement provided for wholesale 


sanitary sewer service being provided by VOPP to Bristol only to the extent permitted by the 


City of Kenosha and KWU; and  


F. Bristol desires to have PPWU and PPSU, respectively, provide water and sanitary 


sewer service to the approximately 513 acre area of land in the Village of Bristol depicted on 


Exhibit A attached hereto, also known as Bristol Utility District 5 (“BUD5”), such land being 


within the Village Supervised Drainage Area (as defined in the 1997 KWU Agreement and the 


1997 Cooperative Agreement); and 


G. Bristol desires to have PPWU provide retail water service to the properties in 


BUD5 pursuant to the terms hereof at rates which are approved by the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (“PSCW”) and at standards of service which are prescribed by the 


PSCW and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (“WDNR”); and 


H. Bristol desires to have PPSU provide retail sanitary sewer service to the properties 


in BUD5 at rates determined as set forth in the 1997 Cooperative Agreement as modified by this 


Agreement; and 


I. Upon the approval by PPWU of the plans and specifications of the BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure (as hereinafter defined) or portions thereof, the construction by Bristol or on its 


behalf of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure or portions thereof, the inspection of the BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure or portions thereof by PPWU and the conveyance to and acceptance of the BUD5 


Water Infrastructure or portions thereof by PPWU and the satisfaction of certain conditions 


subsequent, PPWU shall supply retail water to the properties in BUD5 pursuant to the terms 


hereof after any necessary approval of WDNR, PSCW, City of Kenosha, KWU, VOPP and 


PPWU; and 


J. Upon the approval by PPSU of the plans and specifications of the BUD5 Sewer 


Infrastructure (as hereinafter defined) or portions thereof, the construction by Bristol or on its 


behalf of the BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure or portions thereof, the inspection of the BUD5 Sewer 


Infrastructure by PPSU and the conveyance to and acceptance of the BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure 


or portions thereof by PPSU, PPSU shall supply retail sewer to the properties in BUD5 pursuant 







 


3 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


to the terms hereof after any necessary approval of WDNR, City of Kenosha, KWU, VOPP and 


PPWU; and 


K. The Prairie Parties will construct a water main within the Village of Pleasant 


Prairie to bring water service from the termination of the water service infrastructure within the 


Village of Pleasant Prairie to the municipal boundary between the Village of Bristol and the 


Village of Pleasant Prairie as provided in Section 6 below, and Bristol will construct or cause to 


be constructed facilities within BUD5 to provide retail water service to the properties within 


BUD5 as provided herein; and 


L. The Prairie Parties will construct sanitary sewer mains within the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie to bring sewer service from the termination of the sewer service infrastructure 


within the Village of Pleasant Prairie to the municipal boundary between the Village of Bristol 


and the Village of Pleasant Prairie as provided in Section 14 below, and Bristol will construct or 


cause to be constructed facilities within BUD5 to provide retail sanitary sewer service to the 


properties within BUD5 as provided herein; and 


M. VOPP must be assured that Bristol will continue to obtain its water supply and 


sanitary sewer service for BUD5 for a reasonable period of time so that VOPP may prudently 


plan expansion of its facilities and so that such facilities, when constructed, will be utilized as 


fully as possible; and 


N. The Parties entered into the Wholesale Water Agreement for the Prairie Parties to 


provide water to BUD5 under a wholesale system described therein, and as clarified in Section 2, 


below (the “Wholesale Water Option”), although subject to certain contingencies, and subject to 


approval by the PSCW of a certificate of authority as to construction authorization, rates and 


standards of service for the expansion of the water system into BUD5 (“PSCW Approval”), 


approval by the WDNR to install the water mains (the “WDNR Approval”) and approval by the 


City of Kenosha and KWU under Section 29 of the 1997 KWU Agreement (“KWU Approval”); 


and 


O. The Parties desire to amend and restate the Wholesale Water Agreement to create 


a preferred option for PPWU to provide water service at retail (the “Retail Water Option”) to the 


properties within BUD5 pursuant to the terms of this Agreement as well as for PPSU to provide 


sanitary sewer service at retail to the properties within BUD5 pursuant to the terms of this 


Agreement and the 1997 Cooperative Agreement, to the extent not amended hereby; and 







 


4 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


P. Any extensions of water and sanitary sewer service into and within BUD5 shall 


be accomplished by the Parties in compliance with this Agreement and the 1997 Cooperative 


Agreement, to the extent not amended hereby. 


TERMS AND CONDITIONS 


In consideration of the mutual provisions of this Agreement, and other good and valuable 


consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by each of the 


Parties, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 


I. WATER SERVICE. 


1. SERVICE AREA.  PPWU shall provide retail water to service the properties in 


BUD5, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.   


2. SERVICE TYPE.  After this Agreement has been approved by all required 


actions of the Parties, the Prairie Parties agree to promptly apply for after the execution of this 


Agreement by the Parties and diligently pursue the PSCW Approval for the Retail Water Option.  


If the PSCW approves the Retail Water Option, the Parties agree to the provision of service 


pursuant to the Retail Water Option, and the Wholesale Water Option shall be terminated and of 


no further force and effect.  If the PSCW does not approve the Retail Water Option, then the 


Parties will promptly take all action necessary to seek approval of the Wholesale Water Option, 


including, as necessary, any amendments to this Agreement.  The Wholesale Water Option shall 


include the construction and operation of the wholesale water system with the approximate 


layout as shown on Exhibit B (as amended by the Parties by approval of final plans and 


specifications, the “Wholesale Water System”). 


3. PPWU’S EXCLUSIVE PROVISION OF WATER TO BUD5.  Subject to the 


provisions of this Agreement, during the term of this Agreement, PPWU shall provide retail 


water service to the properties within BUD5, and Bristol shall not operate or use an alternative 


water supply source for BUD5, and shall not contract or arrange with any other person or entity 


for the operation or use of an alternative water supply source for the provision of water to BUD5. 







 


5 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


4. WATER QUALITY, QUANTITY, AND PRESSURE STANDARDS. 


4.1 Quality.  PPWU shall provide retail water service to the owners of the property 


within BUD5 which is safe for human consumption and which meets all primary drinking water 


quality standards from time to time established by the State of Wisconsin and Federal 


governments.  The water shall be of the same purity and quality as water provided to other retail 


customers by PPWU.   


4.2 Water Pressure.  Water service to customers in BUD5 will be at a pressure 


sufficient to satisfy all applicable requirements of the WDNR and the PSCW, with a goal of 


providing a typical minimum operating pressure of not less than 35 pounds per square inch and 


20 pounds per square inch under fire flow conditions described in Subsection 4.5 hereof and 


subject to PSCW and WDNR regulations.  Parties acknowledge that the current modelling of the 


BUD5 Water Infrastructure suggests that the proposed users of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure 


will maintain a minimum operating pressure of 35 psi within the BUD5 Water Infrastructure.  


However, PPWU shall not be required to make any improvements to its water system to increase 


the water pressure or to create a separate water pressure zone for BUD5; provided, however, that 


PPWU shall make such improvements at Bristol’s reasonable request, so long as the entire cost 


of such improvements are at Bristol’s sole cost and expense. 


4.3 Water Supply Rate.  Other than as limited in Subsection 4.4 hereof, the supply of 


water to retail customers in BUD5 shall not exceed an average daily rate of 350,000 gallons per 


day, nor a peak daily rate of 720,000 gallons per day excluding any fire flow rate and volume 


demands (the “Water Supply Rate” or “WSR”). 


4.4 Water Limits/Moratoria/Emergencies.  The supply of water described in 


Subsection 4.3 of this Agreement shall be limited by 1) a water limit or moratorium imposed by 


KWU on PPWU that limits PPWU’s ability to serve retail customers within BUD5 under this 


Agreement; or 2) emergencies that impact the PPWU water delivery system’s (“PPWU System”) 


ability to serve retail customers within BUD5 under this Agreement.  Any such water limit or 


moratorium shall be applied to retail customers within BUD5 by PPWU in a nondiscriminatory 


and pro rata fashion in comparison to limits and moratoriums applied to PPWU’s other retail 







 


6 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


customers as a result of the specific KWU or PPWU actions that limit the ability to serve retail 


customers within BUD5 under this Agreement.  


4.5 Fire Flow Demand.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, PPWU will provide 


fire flow demand to retail customers within BUD5 at no less than 3500 gallons per minute for 


three hours. 


4.6 Other Sources for BWU.  In the event PPWU is unable to satisfy any 


requirements of this Agreement, including conditions described in Subsection 4.4, and regardless 


of the reason for such inability, the Bristol Parties may obtain water service from any other 


source without violating the terms of this Agreement but only for the specific period of time in 


which PPWU is unable to provide water service.  


4.7 Nondiscrimination.  PPWU shall not discriminate or differentiate in quality of 


service or in its method of calculating rates between retail customers within BUD5 and other 


retail customers of PPWU. 


5. BUD5 WATER INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS.  


5.1 Bristol, or an entity on Bristol’s behalf, shall design, construct, and complete in a 


good and workmanlike manner any necessary water system infrastructure within BUD5, from 


the points where the PPWU water system terminates or will terminate at the municipal boundary 


between the Village of Bristol and the Village of Pleasant Prairie (“BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure”), to enable retail customers within BUD5 to take delivery of water from PPWU at 


the termination of the public water main to each of their buildings.  The initial phases of the 


BUD5 Water Infrastructure is currently expected to be laid out approximately as shown on 


Exhibit C attached hereto.   


5.2 Bristol shall design the BUD5 Water Infrastructure in compliance with all 


applicable KWU, PSCW, WDNR, PPWU and VOPP construction ordinances, rules and 


regulations.  Bristol shall submit plans and specifications for the BUD5 Water Infrastructure to 


PPWU for its review and approval and shall receive such approval, which shall not unreasonably 


be withheld, prior to commencing construction of any BUD5 Water Infrastructure.  Bristol, or an 







 


7 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


entity on Bristol’s behalf, shall design, construct and complete any BUD5 Water Infrastructure 


consistent with the plans and specifications reviewed and approved by PPWU.  


5.3 Other than the PSCW Approval and the KWU Approval, Bristol shall seek and 


obtain any necessary permits and governmental approvals for the BUD5 Water Infrastructure.  


The Prairie Parties shall apply for the PSCW Approval in a timely fashion after the execution of 


this Agreement by the Parties and shall use reasonable efforts to obtain such approvals.  The cost 


of all BUD5 Water Infrastructure, including permitting and governmental approvals, including 


the cost and expense of PPWU and VOPP review and approval (and including the cost and 


expense of the PSCW Approval, the KWU Approval and the WDNR Approval), shall be borne 


by Bristol.  Upon Bristol’s request, the Prairie Parties shall provide a cost estimate of all of the 


costs payable to PPWU and VOPP in connection with the inspections and approvals required by 


PPWU and VOPP pursuant to this Agreement after Bristol’s submission of the plans and 


specifications for any BUD5 Infrastructure to PPWU and VOPP.  Bristol may obligate property 


owners within BUD5 to build certain portions of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure, but Bristol will 


be responsible for the construction of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure pursuant to the terms of 


this Agreement, and the Prairie Parties shall not have any responsibility to deal directly with 


these property owners.   


5.4 The BUD5 Water Infrastructure will be constructed in accordance with the VOPP 


Standard Construction Specifications.  Approvals and permits for the BUD5 Water Infrastructure 


shall be obtained in the following order:  first, VOPP, second, City of Kenosha/KWU and third, 


WDNR.  VOPP shall submit plans and specifications to City of Kenosha/KWU.  Bristol shall 


cause the submittal of plans and specifications to WDNR after VOPP and City of Kenosha/KWU 


approval. 


5.5 The Parties anticipate that the BUD5 Water System may be built and connected in 


phases, which are described in Exhibit D attached hereto, and with completion dates as needed to 


serve certain retail customers in BUD5, as their buildings are built and receive building or 


occupancy permits, in the approximate schedule shown on Exhibit E attached hereto (the “BUD5 


Water System Timeline”).  PPWU shall not be obligated to deliver water to a building in BUD5 


until an Approved Water Utility Easement (as hereinafter defined) for the BUD5 Infrastructure 







 


8 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


has been granted to VOPP after the plans and specifications for the BUD5 Infrastructure have 


been approved by the Prairie Parties, but prior to the commencement of construction of the 


BUD5 Water Infrastructure, Bristol has completed or has caused the completion of the portion of 


the BUD5 Water Infrastructure necessary to service such building, such portion of the BUD5 


Water Infrastructure has been inspected, approved and accepted by the Prairie Parties, the BUD5 


Infrastructure has been dedicated to and accepted by VOPP by the Approved Water Dedication 


Document (as hereinafter defined), and the property owner within BUD5 has constructed the 


connection from the building to the BUD5 Water Infrastructure.  Bristol shall cause the 


construction of that portion of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure depicted as “HSA Phase 1” on 


Exhibit D attached hereto to be completed on or before the earlier of (i) the commencement of 


the above grade construction of a building on the property on which such HSA Phase 1 is located 


or (ii) not later than six (6) years after the date of completion of any portion of the BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure depicted as “Janko Phase 1A” on Exhibit D attached hereto.  Bristol shall cause the 


construction of that portion of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure depicted as Janko Phase 1A to be 


completed on or before the earlier of (i) the commencement of the above grade construction of a 


building on the property on which such Janko Phase 1A is located or (ii) not later than six (6) 


years after the date of completion of any portion of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure depicted as 


HSA Phase 1. 


5.6 The design and construction of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure shall be performed 


by Bristol or on Bristol’s behalf in a good and workmanlike manner, to such standards as are 


generally specified by VOPP for such work as if performed by or on behalf of VOPP and as 


specifically required by VOPP, and Bristol shall provide that VOPP shall be a third party 


beneficiary of all design and construction contracts.  The BUD5 Water Infrastructure 


construction shall at all times be subject to the Prairie Parties’ reasonable inspection and 


approval, and VOPP shall not be required to accept conveyance of any BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure to be dedicated to VOPP unless the BUD5 Water Infrastructure has been 


constructed consistent with good utility practice in a good and workmanlike manner, in 


accordance with the VOPP and PPWU approved plans and specifications for the BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure.  Bristol shall, or shall cause the property owner upon which such BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure is located (the “Dedicating Property Owner”), to promptly and unconditionally 


dedicate, give, grant and convey to PPWU the BUD5 Water Infrastructure, upon installation and 







 


9 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


completion by Bristol, and inspection and approval by VOPP and PPWU, at no cost or expense 


to the Prairie Parties.  BUD5 Water Infrastructure shall be so dedicated free and clear of any 


liens or encumbrances.  In addition to the conveyance of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure, Bristol 


shall, or shall cause the Dedicating Property Owner, to grant to VOPP the Approved Water 


Utility Easement for the maintenance, access, construction, inspection, repair and replacement of 


such BUD5 Water Infrastructure after the plans and specifications for the BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure have been approved by the Prairie Parties but prior to the commencement of 


construction of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure, and dedicate the BUD5 Water Infrastructure to 


VOPP pursuant to the Approved Water Dedication Document after the completion of the 


construction of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure.   


5.7 The Prairie Parties shall accept grants of easements for and dedications of BUD5 


Water Infrastructure only in accordance with the applicable provisions of Chapter 405 of the 


VOPP ordinances, Design Standards and Construction Specifications regarding acceptance of 


dedications of public improvements subject to the warranty period as provided below.  After 


VOPP accepts any such dedication pursuant to the Approved Water Dedication Document, 


PPWU shall have the duty and right to maintain the accepted improvements, except as set forth 


below, and shall have the right to connect to or integrate such improvements with such other 


facilities or improvements with no payment or award to the Bristol Parties or to any Dedicating 


Property Owner and without such party’s consent.  The form of the document by which Bristol 


or the Dedicating Property Owner grants the easement to VOPP for the BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure is attached hereto as Exhibit F (the “Approved Water Utility Easement”).  The 


form of the document by which Bristol or the Dedicating Property Owner dedicates the BUD5 


Water Infrastructure to VOPP, and VOPP accepts such dedication, is attached hereto as Exhibit 


G (the “Approved Water Dedication Document”).  Bristol will have the Approved Water Utility 


Easement for that Phase recorded in the Kenosha County Register of Deed’s Office prior to the 


commencement of construction of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure for such Phase, and provide a 


copy of such recorded easement to the Prairie Parties.  If any portion of the easement area is in a 


road right-of-way, such as in CTH U, instead of an Approved Utility Easement, Bristol shall 


cause its developer to secure an Application Permit to Construct, Operate and Maintain Utilities 


within Highway Right-of-Way, from Kenosha County, which will cover the Dedicating Property 







 


10 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Owner’s actions in constructing the required utilities, and cover the Prairie Parties’ actions in 


operating and maintaining those utilities. 


5.8 Bristol or the Dedicating Property Owner shall provide to the Prairie Parties in 


connection with the dedication of each BUD5 Water Infrastructure improvement, duly signed 


lien waivers from all contractors, subcontractors and other persons who may have provided any 


labor or material with respect to such BUD5 Water Infrastructure specifically detailing the work 


done, the material supplied and the dollar amounts of such waivers.  Bristol or the Dedicating 


Property Owner will represent and warrant to the Prairie Parties that there are no liens or 


encumbrances on the BUD5 Water Infrastructure being dedicated in each Approved Water 


Dedication Document, nor encumbering the easement granted in the Approved Water Utility 


Easement, other than as approved in writing by the Prairie Parties.  Bristol or the Dedicating 


Property Owner shall provide the Prairie Parties with an owner’s policy of title insurance upon 


such dedication, evidencing the lien free dedication of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure and the 


lien free grant of the Approved Water Utility Easements required therewith.  All such 


representations and warranties shall survive the dedication of any land or interest in land 


provided for hereunder and by the acceptance of such dedication by the Prairie Parties.   


5.9 Upon dedication, Bristol or the Dedicating Property Owner shall represent and 


warrant that to the best of such party’s knowledge, there is no hazardous substance, pollution or 


contamination on or in any portion of the land or interest in land dedicated to the Prairie Parties.  


Bristol or the Dedicating Property Owner shall provide to the Prairie Parties from such party or 


such party’s contractors in connection with the construction and installation of the BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure a one year warranty against defects in construction, material and workmanship, in 


a form reasonably acceptable to the Prairie Parties, which will commence upon the date of 


acceptance of dedication by VOPP under the Approved Water Dedication Document.  Bristol or 


the Dedicating Property Owner shall provide to the Prairie Parties as-built construction records 


for such BUD5 Water Infrastructure in an electronic format acceptable to the Prairie Parties.  


Bristol or the Dedicating Property Owner shall assign all guarantees and warranties, both explicit 


and implied, from all design professionals and contractors, benefitting such party in connection 


with the BUD5 Water Infrastructure to PPWU.   







 


11 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


5.10 The construction of all BUD5 Water Infrastructure shall be performed by 


contractors and subcontractors who are licensed and qualified to do such work and are approved 


by the Prairie Parties.  Bristol or the Dedicating Property Owner shall provide certificates of 


liability insurance naming the Prairie Parties as named insureds for the construction of all BUD5 


Water Infrastructure from all contractors for the construction of any BUD5 Water Infrastructure 


and shall provide certificates of insurance to the Prairie Parties prior to the commencement of 


such construction.   


5.11 Bristol agrees to pay for all inspection and construction related services provided 


by the Prairie Parties in connection with the approval and acceptance of dedication of the BUD5 


Water Infrastructure.  Bristol or somebody on Bristol’s behalf shall at all times take all 


precautions necessary or advisable and at all times perform all work on such BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure in a manner that will safeguard and protect the water and sanitary infrastructure 


that may be affected by the construction of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure in compliance with 


the requirements of VOPP’s Construction Site Maintenance and Erosion Control Ordinance.  


VOPP shall perform all construction field inspection services relating to the BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure and Bristol shall pay all invoices from VOPP for any such services upon thirty 


(30) days of the receipt of such invoices. 


5.12 After each phase of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure has been constructed as 


provided herein (each, a “Phase”), Bristol shall notify PPWU, and PPWU shall promptly inspect 


such Phase to confirm that such Phase has been completed in compliance with the plans and 


specifications approved by PPWU for the approval of such Phase (the “PPWU Phase 


Approval”).  For each Phase, after the PPWU Phase Approval, Bristol shall convey, or cause the 


Dedicating Property Owner to convey to VOPP, the ownership of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure 


in that Phase, using the Approved Water Dedication Document, as more particularly provided in 


Subsections 5.6 through 5.9 above, and from the date of the acceptance by VOPP of the 


Approved Water Dedication Document, the buildings and improvements connected to that Phase 


of the Retail Delivery System shall be retail customers of PPWU.   


5.13 From and after the date of dedication to VOPP pursuant to the Approved Water 


Dedication Document, PPWU shall have all obligation for the operation, maintenance, repair, 







 


12 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


and replacement of that portion of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure, which PPWU may recover 


solely through its rate structure as allowed by the PSCW.  PPWU will bill the retail users directly 


for any water usage.   


5.14 In completing any necessary infrastructure improvements or any other 


improvements, Bristol agrees to not exercise the power of eminent domain with respect to any 


land within Bristol owned by VOPP as of August 1, 2018, except for any utility easements 


needed for the Retail Water System described herein, or for any road widening to accommodate 


an owner or user of land within Bristol owned by VOPP as of August 1, 2018. 


5.15 The Parties acknowledge that the water to be provided to BUD5 pursuant to this 


Agreement was grandfathered under the Great Lakes Compact for water diversion.  Bristol 


remains responsible for its own permitting and reporting to the WDNR respecting water 


diversion and nothing in this Agreement affects any Parties' obligations in this regard, but, on 


request of Bristol, the Prairie Parties will provide the meter usage reports or other data needed 


for Bristol to complete these reports. 


5.16 This Agreement shall constitute the amendment to the 1997 Cooperative 


Agreement regarding the provision of municipal water service by the Prairie Parties to Bristol 


pursuant to Section 5 of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement. 


6. PPWU WATER INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS.  After the 


Effective Date of this Agreement, PPWU shall design, construct, and complete an extension to 


the water main which currently terminates at the northern boundary of BUD5 and 128th Avenue 


extending west from such current termination point to the municipal boundary between the 


Village of Pleasant Prairie and the Village of Bristol depicted as “VOPP Installed Main (VOPP 


Investment)” on Exhibit C attached hereto (the “PPWU Paid Water Main”) and a further 


extension of such water main from the westerly termination of the PPWU Paid Water Main 


extending south from such termination along the boundary between the Village of Pleasant 


Prairie and the Village of Bristol as depicted as “VOPP Installed Main (Bristol Investment)” on 


Exhibit C attached hereto (the “Bristol Paid Water Main”). The PPWU Paid Water Main and the 


Bristol Paid Water Main are collectively referred to as the “PPWU Water Infrastructure.”  


PPWU shall seek and obtain any necessary permits and government approvals for the PPWU 







 


13 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Water Infrastructure.  PPWU shall pay for the PPWU Paid Water Main in the first instance and 


shall recover the costs of such through its rate structure as approved by the PSCW.  Bristol shall 


pay for the Bristol Paid Water Main, which shall be invoiced to Bristol by PPWU no earlier than 


when above grade construction of the first building in the northeast quadrant of BUD5 


commences.  Bristol shall pay such invoices to PPWU upon thirty (30) days of the receipt of 


such invoices.  PPWU shall not be required to commence construction of the PPWU Water 


Infrastructure until construction of the first building in the northeast quadrant of BUD5 


commences. 


7. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE.   


7.1 Except for the cost of construction of the BUD 5 Water Infrastructure to be paid 


by Bristol as provided in Section 5 of this Agreement, from the date of the acceptance by PPWU 


of the dedication of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure and Approved Utility Easement for such 


BUD5 Water Infrastructure, PPWU shall, at its cost and expense, operate, maintain, repair, and 


replace all parts of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure so dedicated to PPWU.  PPWU shall recover 


the costs incurred in this Section through its rate structure, as approved by PSCW. 


8. BRISTOL PARTIES’ REQUEST FOR INCREASE IN AREA SERVED. 


8.1 Limitation on Requests for Increase in Service Area.  The Prairie Parties and the 


Bristol Parties agree that § 66.0813(5m), Wis. Stats. is not presently applicable to the Bristol 


Parties or the Prairie Parties because at present Bristol does not contain an area that receives 


water service from PPWU.  In consideration of the fact that after entering into this Agreement, 


§ 66.0813(5m) may be applicable to Bristol and VOPP, and because both the Prairie Parties and 


the Bristol Parties intend to interpret the meaning of certain terms within the meaning of 


§ 66.0813(5m), Wis. Stats. in the same manner and are relying on the same in entering into this 


Agreement, the Prairie Parties and the Bristol Parties agree as follows: 


(a) the phrase “the utility does not have sufficient capacity to serve the area that is the 


subject of the request,” within § 66.0813(5m), Wis. Stats. means that the utility, in the 


applicable case, PPWU, cannot serve the area that is the subject of the request without 


adding additional capacity (i.e., new infrastructure or upgrading existing infrastructure 







 


14 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


(“Additional Capacity”); 


(b) the phrase “significant adverse effect on the utility” within § 66.0813(5m), Wis. Stats. 


means that the utility, in the applicable case, PPWU, by serving the area that is the 


subject of the request, will become subject to any of the following:  (1) the cost of adding 


Additional Capacity (as defined above) without an ability to seek recovery of those costs 


through the rate structure as approved by the PSCW, (2) the need to issue bonds or notes 


in order to add Additional Capacity (as defined above) at a time when in the discretion of 


the Prairie Parties, the issuance of those bonds or notes would have an adverse impact on 


the ability of the Prairie Parties to meet other needs of the Prairie Parties; (3) a significant 


compromise in the quality and reliability of the service provided by PPWU to its then 


existing customers, (4) an increase in the water rates of existing customers, (5) the 


reasonable possibility that it may be in noncurable breach of the 1997 KWU Agreement, 


or (6) any costs or expenses including administrative expenses in excess of $25,000 that 


it may not be able to recover through its rate structure. 


8.2 Deference to Determination of PPWU.  The application of the phrases defined in 


Subsection 8.1 by PPWU to the facts as presented in a request made by the Bristol Parties, shall 


be given deference by the Bristol Parties and the Prairie Parties.  Any attempt by the Bristol 


Parties to interpret § 66.0813(5m), Wis. Stats. in a manner different than as stated herein or any 


attempt by the Bristol Parties to invalidate Subsection 8.1 shall be a material breach of this 


Agreement.  


9. RETAIL WATER RATES.   


9.1 Subject to the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to, the maximum 


WSR set forth in Subsection 4.3 hereof, each landowner who secures a building permit from 


Bristol for the construction of a building in BUD5, or their subsequent tenants, shall be a new 


retail customer of PPWU.  Owners and tenants of land and buildings currently existing in BUD5, 


shall not be obligated to connect to the BUD5 Water Infrastructure, or become retail customers 


of PPWU, and PPWU shall not be obligated to serve any buildings in BUD5 on the Effective 


Date.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, owners and tenants of land and buildings currently 


existing in BUD5, shall become retail customers of PPWU if they substantially change the use of 







 


15 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


the property.  PPWU shall be obligated to serve properties in BUD5 from the latter of the date 


when (i) PPWU has accepted the dedication of the BUD5 Water Infrastructure and Approved 


Utility Easement as provided in Subsections 5.6 through 5.9 above to service the property within 


BUD5 upon which such building is located or (ii) when the owner of such property has 


connected to the Retail Water System.  PPWU shall be solely responsible for billing of all fees or 


charges to these retail customers for water service.   


9.2 The schedule of water rates under this Agreement shall be the current rates 


authorized by the PSCW for retail customers of PPWU as such rates may be updated from time 


to time. 


10.  ROLE OF PSCW.  


10.1 The Parties acknowledge that in entering into this Agreement they are mutually 


relying on the regulatory role of the PSCW, as of the date of this Agreement with respect to 


matters relating to water service rates, rules and practices.  In the event that the responsibilities of 


the PSCW or any successor agency with respect to such matters change materially, or in the 


event that the level of involvement of the PSCW or any successor agency in such matters 


changes materially, or in the event that the PSCW ceases to exist or exercise regulatory authority 


regarding water service rates and practices and such authority has not been transferred to a 


successor agency, the Parties shall discuss how best to restructure this Agreement and/or the 


relationship of the Parties so that the original cost-benefit balance of this Agreement, or a 


reasonable approximation thereof, and the reasonably smooth and efficient administration of this 


Agreement, can feasibly be reestablished and maintained.  PPWU shall schedule and conduct 


meetings of the Parties as often as may be helpful, and the Parties shall use their best efforts 


(including, but not limited to, holding special meetings of the respective governing bodies) to 


rapidly find, design and implement a means of successfully accomplishing this purpose, 


including, but not limited to, the negotiation of appropriate amendments of this Agreement or to 


resolve the dispute regarding this Agreement or to remedy any alleged breach of this Agreement.  


In doing so, each Party shall have the obligation to act in good faith. 


10.2 The Parties agree that notwithstanding this Agreement, each of them shall have 


the right as provided by Wisconsin law to advocate before the PSCW or any other appropriate 







 


16 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


authority or Court, at any time, for the establishment of retail water rates for BUD5 at a level 


which is different from the then-existing rates.  The Parties agree to treat each other fairly and 


reasonably in any such action. 


II. SANITARY SEWER SERVICE. 


11. SERVICE AREA.  PPSU shall provide retail sanitary sewer to service the 


properties in BUD5 pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  The Parties acknowledge that 


PPWU has completed the Bristol Only Sewer Main and the Joint Sewer Main (as hereinafter 


defined).  All sanitary sewer rates charged to customer receiving service under this Agreement 


shall be pursuant to tariff, ordinance, or other mechanism utilized by PPSU to establish and 


charge retail customers. 


12. SERVICE TYPE.  The 1997 Cooperative Agreement, including, but not limited 


to, Section 4(b)(17) thereof, provided that all sanitary sewer services would be constructed, 


owned and maintained by the Town of Bristol, now the Village of Bristol, pursuant to a 


wholesale purchase by the Town of Bristol of a portion of the Prairie Parties’ sanitary sewer 


capacity obtained from KWU under the 1997 KWU Agreement.  The Parties have set forth in 


this Section II the terms whereby PPSU will provide retail sanitary sewer services to the property 


owners within BUD5 (the “Retail Sewer Option”).  If the PSCW does not approve the Retail 


Water Option, the Parties shall not be obligated to the Retail Sewer Option as provided in this 


Section II, and Section 4 of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement shall continue by its terms, shall 


not be amended hereby and shall remain effective between the Parties. 


13. PPSU’S EXCLUSIVE PROVISION OF SANITARY SEWER TO BUD5.  


Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, during the term of this Agreement, PPSU shall 


provide retail sanitary sewer services to the properties within BUD5, and Bristol shall not 


operate or use an alternative sanitary sewer source for BUD5, and shall not contract or arrange 


with any other person or entity for the operation or use of an alternative sanitary sewer supply 


source for the provision of sanitary sewer services to BUD5.  Owners and tenants of land and 


buildings currently existing in BUD5, shall not be obligated to connect to the PPSU sanitary 


sewer system or take service under the Retail Sewer Option. Owners and tenants of land and 







 


17 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


buildings currently existing in BUD5, shall become retail customers of PPSU if they become 


retail customers of PPWU. 


14. PAYMENTS UNDER 1997 COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT.  The 1997 


Cooperative Agreement provides that certain payments be made by Bristol in connection with 


the provision of sanitary sewer services to BUD5.  The Prairie Parties acknowledge that Bristol 


has paid the I-94 Sewer Main Extension Charge and Sewer Capacity Charge for BUD5 provided 


in Sections 4(b)(1) and (2) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement.  The Parties agree that Section 


4(b)(7) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement will continue to stay in full force and effect 


regarding the payment by Bristol for sewer conveyance facilities used solely by retail customers 


in the Village of Bristol and joint use sewage conveyance facilities used by retail customers in 


both the Village of Bristol and the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  Bristol agrees to pay 100% of the 


cost of the sanitary sewer main depicted as “Bristol Only Sewer Interceptor” (the “Bristol Only 


Sewer Main”) on Exhibit H attached hereto (the “Bristol Only Payment”).  The Parties agree that 


Bristol will pay 44.8% of the cost of the sewer main depicted as “Joint Use Sewer Interceptor” 


(the “Joint Sewer Main”) on Exhibit H attached hereto (the “Joint Bristol Payment”).  The 


Parties agree that the methodology used to allocate the percentage paid by Bristol for the Joint 


Sewer Main estimating the relative average sanitary sewer flow in gallons per day for the 


customers within the Village of Pleasant Prairie using such joint use facility compared to the 


estimated average sanitary sewer flow in gallons per day for the customers within BUD5 is one 


proper methodology for cost allocation.  Section 4(b)(20) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement 


provides an allocation to Bristol of the costs of upgrading the existing lift station (the “Lift 


Station Upgrade”), which will service the PPSU customers in BUD5 and the adjoining PPSU 


customers to the east within the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  The Parties agree that Bristol will 


pay VOPP 24.5% of the costs of the upgrade of such lift station (the “Bristol Lift Station 


Payment”).  The Parties agree that the methodology used to allocate the percentage paid by 


Bristol for the upgrading of the lift station estimating the relative average sanitary sewer flow in 


gallons per day for the customers to be located within BUD5 compared to the estimated average 


sanitary flow in gallons per day for the remaining retail customers of PPSU located in the Village 


of Pleasant Prairie is one proper methodology for cost allocation.  The Bristol Only Payment, the 


Joint Bristol Payment and the Bristol Lift Station Payment are collectively referred to as the 


“Bristol Sewer Payment.”  Bristol agrees to pay 29% of the Bristol Sewer Payment on the earlier 







 


18 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


of (i) the date that the first building within the property located in the northeast quadrant of 


BUD5 connects to the PPSU sanitary sewer system or (ii) the date which is five (5) years after 


the Effective Date of this Agreement.  Bristol agrees to pay 71% of the Bristol Sewer Payment 


on the earlier of (i) the date that the first building within the property located in the southern half 


of BUD5 connects to the PPSU sanitary sewer system or (ii) the date which is five (5) years after 


the Effective Date of this Agreement.  PPSU agrees to construct the Lift Station Upgrade. 


15. Section 4(b)(5) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement is hereby deleted and 


replaced with the following:  “Bristol shall require that each building within BUD5 connecting to 


the PPSU sanitary sewer system provide a sampling manhole upstream of the connection 


between such building and the PPSU sanitary sewer main to sample the effluent flowing from 


such building into the PPSU sanitary sewer system.  The Approved Sewer Utility Easement (as 


hereinafter defined) shall grant to VOPP the right to sample and inspect the sanitary sewer 


effluent from such building to confirm conformance with all applicable regulations.  PPSU may 


determine the rate of flow into the PPSU sanitary sewer system by using the rate of water being 


used by a retail customer as reflected by the water meter readings from the water meters required 


to be installed by all property owners within BUD5 connecting to the PPWU system.  PPSU may 


adjust such estimate for industrial users being provided water by PPWU which is being used 


rather than discharged into the PPSU sanitary sewer system.  PPSU shall have the right to install 


separate sanitary sewer rate meters for individual retail users or a meter downstream of BUD5 to 


meter the sanitary sewer flow rate from all of the property owners within BUD5 into the PPSU 


sanitary sewer system.” 


16. Section 4(b)(8) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement is hereby deleted.  For the 


avoidance of doubt, Sections 4(b)(9), (10), (11), (12), (13), (14), (15) and (16) shall continue in 


accordance with their terms and be effective between the Parties. 


17. Section 4(b)(17) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement is hereby deleted and 


replaced with the following:  “The sanitary sewer facilities within BUD5 shall be owned and 


maintained by VOPP and PPSU, after the acceptance by VOPP of the Approved Sewer 


Dedication Document (as hereinafter defined) as provided herein, and the property owners of the 


land within BUD5 which connect to the PPSU sanitary sewer system shall be retail customers of 







 


19 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


PPSU.  The design of the necessary sanitary sewer infrastructure within BUD5 from the point 


where the PPSU sanitary sewer sanitary sewer system will terminate at the boundary between the 


Village of Pleasant Prairie and the Village of Bristol, to enable retail BUD5 customers to connect 


to the PPSU sanitary sewer system at each of their buildings (the “BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure”), 


the approval of the design of such BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure by PPSU, the granting of the 


Approved Sewer Utility Easements for such BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure to VOPP, the 


construction and payment for the construction of such BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure by Bristol, the 


inspection and acceptance of the BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure by PPSU and VOPP, and the 


dedication and acceptance of the BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure by VOPP under the Approved 


Sewer Dedication Document, shall occur in the same way, and the Parties shall have the same 


obligations thereto as provided in Section 5 hereof regarding the BUD5 Water Infrastructure.  


Sections 5.1 and 5.4 hereof are hereby repeated in this Section 17 herein for all purposes with the 


term “sewer” being substituted for the term “water,” the defined term “BUD5 Sewer 


Infrastructure” being substituted for the term “BUD5 Water Infrastructure,” the term “PPSU” 


being substituted for the term “PPWU,” the term “Approved Sewer Utility Easement” being 


substituted for the term “Approved Water Utility Easement” and the term “Approved Sewer 


Dedication Document” being substituted for the term “Approved Water Dedication Document.”  


The second sentence of Section 5.1 is hereby deleted, the BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure not 


requiring approval of the PSCW, but requiring the approval of Southeastern Wisconsin Regional 


Planning Commission (“SEWRPC”), and the sewer rates to be paid by PPSU customers in 


BUD5 are established pursuant to PPSU tariff, ordinance, or other mechanism, and not by the 


PSCW unless the PSCW modifies such rates pursuant to existing authority under law.  In 


addition, the following sentences will be substituted for the second, third and fourth sentences of 


Section 5.4:  “Approvals and permits for the BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure shall be obtained in the 


following order:  first, VOPP, second, City of Kenosha/KWU, third, SEWRPC and fourth, 


WDNR.  VOPP shall submit plans and specifications to the City of Kenosha/KWU after VOPP 


approval.  Bristol shall cause the submittal of plans and specifications to SEWRPC after 


approval from the Village and the City of Kenosha/KWU, and Bristol shall submit plans and 


specifications and approval letters to WDNR after approval from the VOPP, City of 


Kenosha/KWU and SEWRPC.” 







 


20 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


In addition, the following sentences shall be substituted for the third and fourth sentences 


of Section 5.7:  “The form of the document by which Bristol or the Dedicating Property Owner 


grants the easement to VOPP for the BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure is attached hereto as Exhibit I 


(“Approved Sewer Utility Easement”).  The form of the document by which Bristol or the 


Dedicating Property Owner dedicates the BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure to VOPP and VOPP 


accepts such dedication is attached hereto as Exhibit J (“Approved Sewer Dedication 


Document”). 


18. Section 4(b)(18) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement is hereby deleted, and the 


issue of Bristol adoption of relevant sewer ordinances is addressed in Section 26 below. 


19. For the avoidance of doubt, Section 4(b)(19) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement 


shall continue in accordance with its terms and be effective between the Parties. 


20. Section 4(b)(20) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement is hereby deleted, and the 


lift station upgrade costs to be paid by Bristol are referenced in Section 14 above. 


21. Section 4(b)(21) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement shall continue in accordance 


with its terms and shall be effective between the parties, except that the words “cannot 


conveniently be passed on to the Town in the form of increased rates” shall be replaced with the 


words “cannot conveniently be passed on to the retail customers of PPSU within BUD5 in the 


form of increased rates.” 


22. For the avoidance of doubt, Sections 4(b)(22), (23), (24) and (25) of the 1997 


Cooperative Agreement shall continue in accordance with their terms and be effective between 


the Parties. 


23. Section 4(b)(26) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement is hereby deleted. 


24. For the avoidance of doubt, Sections 4(b)(27), (28) and (30) of the 1997 


Cooperative Agreement shall continue in accordance with their terms and be effective between 


the Parties. 


25. Section 4(b)(29) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement shall continue in accordance 


with its terms and be effective between the Parties, except the second sentence shall be deleted 







 


21 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


and replaced with the sentence:  “Only private sewer laterals serving the retail customers of 


PPSU within BUD5 may be connected to the PPSU sewerage system.” 


26. For the avoidance of doubt, Section 4(c) of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement shall 


continue in accordance with its terms and be effective between the Parties.   


27. This Agreement shall constitute the amendment to the 1997 Cooperative 


Agreement regarding the provision of municipal water service by the Prairie Parties to Bristol 


pursuant to Section 5 of the 1997 Cooperative Agreement. 


III. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 


28. Bristol shall adopt, within the next two Bristol Village Board meetings after the 


Prairie Parties have agreed to a form of such ordinance, as Bristol’s own ordinance applicable to 


BUD5 (the “Bristol BUD5 Water and Sewer Ordinance”), and thereafter immediately effectuate, 


maintain and vigorously enforce against all property owners within BUD5 the Bristol BUD5 


Water and Sewer Ordinance, containing the approved provisions of both Chapter 285 Sewers and 


Chapter 355 Water of the Code of the Village of Pleasant Prairie necessary for the execution and 


continued compliance by, and enforcement of, this Agreement.  Bristol agrees that no 


construction of BUD5 Water Infrastructure or BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure shall commence until 


after Bristol adopts the Bristol BUD5 Water and Sewer Ordinance.  Bristol shall provide to the 


Prairie Parties within thirty (30) days after the Effective Date Bristol’s proposed ordinance 


containing any deletions or changes to Chapter 285 Sewers and Chapter 355 Water of the Village 


of Pleasant Prairie for the Prairie Parties’ approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably 


withheld.  Bristol shall adopt any relevant amendment to such Chapter 285 Sewers and Chapter 


355 Water within ninety (90) days after VOPP amends such Chapters of its Code of Ordinances.  


To the extent any amendment to such Chapters of the Village of Pleasant Prairie’s Code of 


Ordinances conflicts with this Agreement as applies to BUD5, this Agreement shall control. 


29. So long as Bristol is responsible for constructing all of the BUD5 Water 


Infrastructure and the BUD5 Sewer Infrastructure, and dedicating it to one or more of the Prairie 


Parties as required herein, the Prairie Parties shall not have the ability to charge any of the retail 


water or sanitary sewer customers in BUD5, and Bristol may charge and retain, and have no 


obligation to turn over to the Prairie Parties, any taxes, special assessments, connection or impact 







 


22 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


fees, connection charges, system development charges, and other like fees or charges, in 


connection with the delivery of water and sanitary sewer services under this Agreement, except 


for the normal and customary water or sanitary sewer rates.  Bristol agrees that in the event that 


any retail customer within BUD5 fails to pay its water and/or sewer charges, and if VOPP 


provides to Bristol notice of these delinquent amounts plus any penalty or interest due, that 


Bristol will place such delinquency on the retail customer’s following annual tax bill as a special 


assessment, diligently pursue the payment of such special assessment and pay such amount to 


PPWU or PPSU, as appropriate, upon receipt. 


30. TERM/TERMINATION.  This Agreement shall not terminate unless agreed to 


by Bristol and the Prairie Parties in writing.  


31. RECORD ACCESS.  The Parties shall create and maintain corporate records and 


record information relating to this Agreement.  The Parties agree to allow representatives of the 


other Party to evaluate inspect and copy documents, records and facilities of the other.  Upon 


request of either Party, the other shall provide any requested information, documents or records 


at cost regarding any matters relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  This Section 31 


shall not be construed to eliminate any requirement for public record keeping in conformance 


with State of Wisconsin statutes. 


32. INSURANCE.  During the term of this Agreement, each Party shall, at its sole 


expense, obtain and maintain worker’s compensation insurance covering its employees 


performing the services for that Party in at least the minimum amounts required from time to 


time by applicable State of Wisconsin statutory requirements. 


33. LEGAL RELATIONSHIP.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to 


create an employer/employee relationship, a joint venture relationship or a principal/agent 


relationship. 


34. MISCELLANEOUS. 


34.1 This Agreement shall be subject to applicable rules and regulations of PPWU, 


including those which are on file with the PSCW and of PPSU as such rules and regulations may 


be amended from time to time. 







 


23 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


34.2 The failure of either Party to insist on strict performance of any of the terms or 


conditions of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any right 


granted under this Agreement. 


34.3 In the event that any portion of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable 


such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the other portions of this Agreement. 


34.4 This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of and be 


enforceable by the Parties, their agents, employees, officers and directors.  However, it is not 


intended by the Parties that this Agreement in any way inures to the benefit of any third party. 


34.5 This Agreement shall be binding upon any successor organization or entity 


assigns or other successor political entity of either Party to this Agreement. 


34.6 This Agreement shall not be assigned by any of the Parties hereto without the 


prior written consent of the other Party. 


34.7 This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted under the laws of the State of 


Wisconsin. 


34.8 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties relating to 


the subject matter of this Agreement, as an amendment to the 1997 Cooperative Agreement.  All 


prior understandings, agreements, correspondence and discussions of the Parties are merged into 


and made a part of this Agreement. 


35. NOTICE.  Notices required by this Agreement shall be in writing unless an 


emergency exists and shall be deemed given upon delivery in person or by first class mail 


postage prepaid to such Party at the following addresses: 


Village of Pleasant Prairie  
9915 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53185 
Attn:  Village Administrator 


Village of Pleasant Prairie Water Utility 
9915 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53185 
Attn:  Village Administrator 







 


24 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


 
Village of Pleasant Prairie Sewer Utility 
9915 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53185 
Attn:  Village Administrator 
 
Village of Bristol 
19801 83rd Street 
Bristol, WI 53104 
Attn:  Village Administrator 
 


36. AMENDMENTS.  No amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be 


effective unless made in writing and duly approved and signed by the Parties, and approved by 


the PSCW if such approval is required by law. 


37. ENFORCEMENT/REMEDIES. 


37.1 PSCW Standing.  Bristol shall have the right and standing to complain to the 


PSCW, pursuant to any existing Wisconsin statutory or common law authority, including in any 


rate case filed at the PSCW, that any decision made or action taken or proposed by PPWU or 


PPSU under or pursuant to this Agreement or Wisconsin law constitutes an unreasonable or 


unjustly discriminatory rate, rule or practice, provided and to the extent that Bristol’s position is 


consistent with a good faith interpretation of this Agreement and does not challenge the validity 


or enforceability of this Agreement or any of its provisions.  PPWU and PPSU shall have the 


equivalent right and standing to complain to the PSCW, pursuant to any existing Wisconsin 


statutory or common law authority, including in any rate case filed at the PSCW, that any action 


or inaction of Bristol entitles PPWU or PPSU to relief.  This Subsection 37.1 does not enhance 


or expand the rights of any Party under existing law. 


37.2 Notice of Breach/Dispute Resolution.   If a Party to this Agreement believes that 


any other Party is in breach of this Agreement, the aggrieved Party shall promptly serve written 


notice of said breach upon the other Party.  Representatives of the Parties shall meet promptly 


thereafter and shall endeavor in good faith to resolve any dispute amicably.  If the initial meeting 


fails to resolve the dispute, the respective Village Administrators shall meet within thirty (30) 


days after service of the written notice.  This Subsection is intended by the Parties to this 







 


25 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Agreement to waive their respective statutory right to any further notice under § 893.80(1)(a), 


Wis. Stats., to the extent such subsection is applicable. 


37.3 Civil Actions.  This Agreement is intended to provide each Party with the right 


and standing to challenge in court any act or omission of any other Party which violates this 


Agreement. This Agreement is intended to provide each Party with the right and standing to seek 


any available legal or equitable remedy to enforce the Agreement and to seek damages for the 


breach of this Agreement. 


37.4 Limitation of Commencement of Civil Action.  No civil action regarding a breach 


of this Agreement may be commenced until the latter of either of the following:   


(a) after thirty (30) days from the effective date of written notice required by 


Subsection 35.2 of this Agreement, except that a Party to this Agreement may commence an 


action seeking specific performance or injunctive relief in less than thirty (30) days if, in that 


Party's good faith judgment, such action is necessary to protect the public health, safety or 


welfare. 


(b)  all available remedies at the PSCW have been pursued to completion of any 


applicable PSCW process. 


38. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Amendment shall be effective upon the last of the 


following to occur:  this Agreement being duly approved and signed by each of the Parties (the 


“Effective Date”). 


39. CONDITIONS SUBSEQUENT.  Each Party is aware that a parcel or parcels 


land of approximately 68 acres located in the Village of Bristol, and more particularly shown on 


Exhibit K, and incorporated herein (the “Land”), is presently owned by the VOPP.  Each Party is 


aware that the Land is under contract to a prospective purchaser (the “Purchaser”).  The Parties 


agree that part of the consideration for this Agreement is that water and sewer service will be 


available to the Land.  The Parties agree that the Parties’ obligations hereunder shall cease, and 


the Parties shall have no further obligations hereunder in the event that the following conditions 


subsequent have not been satisfied by the date hereinafter set forth, and either of the Parties 


terminates this Agreement as provided below:  (i) the issuance of the PSCW Approval and (ii) 







 


26 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


the execution of a development agreement between the Purchaser and Bristol providing for the 


development of the Land by Purchaser and the satisfaction of any conditions to the effectiveness 


of such development agreement provided therein.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any costs or 


expenses incurred by the Prairie Parties hereunder but not yet reimbursed by Bristol shall be paid 


by Bristol notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement. 


If the foregoing conditions subsequent have not occurred by September 30, 2019, then 


either Party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement effective October 31, 2019, by 


written notice to the other delivered between October 1, 2019 and October 31, 2019, whereupon 


the Parties shall have no further obligations hereunder, except as otherwise provided above.  The 


Parties may jointly agree to amend this Agreement to extend the deadline for satisfaction of the 


condition subsequent or to amend the characteristics of the condition subsequent prior to the 


termination of this Agreement.  


Nothing contained in this Section 39 is intended to obligate Bristol to issue any permit or 


approval, or infringe on Bristol’s discretion for approval as contained in its ordinances, but is 


intended merely to allow this Agreement to be approved and signed while the other approvals are 


progressing.  


40. APPROVAL/AUTHORITY.  Each Party hereby represents that this Agreement 


was duly approved by its respective governing body on the date stated below in accordance with 


all applicable state and local laws, and that such body has caused its duly authorized officers to 


execute this Agreement.  Each Party also acknowledges that all plans and specifications for 


water distribution and sanitary sewer facilities contemplated under this Agreement require the 


approval or the review by KWU, the City of Kenosha and WDNR and both Parties will work 


together jointly to obtain such approvals. 


41. PARTIES TO AGREEMENT.  The 1997 Cooperative Agreement had certain 


named parties that are not named parties to this Agreement.  The Pleasant Prairie Sewer Utility 


District “D” was vacated and PPSU was created on November 9, 2009.  On February 28, 1998, 


VOPP combined the former Pleasant Prairie Sewer Utility District #1 and the former Pleasant 


Prairie Sewer Utility District “F” and resolved that the combined Districts would thereafter be 


referred to as the Lake Michigan Sanitary Sewer District, which will not be providing sanitary 







 


27 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


sewer service pursuant to this Agreement, and, therefore, is not a party to this Agreement.  PPSU 


will provide the sanitary sewer services pursuant to this Agreement.  VOPP executed the 1997 


Cooperative Agreement on behalf of all of the Pleasant Prairie parties named in the 1997 


Cooperative Agreement and hereby executes this Agreement on their behalf for the purpose of 


amending the 1997 Cooperative Agreement.  The Town of Bristol Utility District No. 3, the 


Town of Bristol Utility District No. 5 and the Town of Bristol Water Utility District were named 


parties to the 1997 Cooperative Agreement, but are not necessary parties to this Agreement, 


since no Bristol parties will be providing water or sanitary sewer services pursuant to the Retail 


Water Option or the Retail Sewer Option.  In the event the Wholesale Water Option and 


Wholesale Sewer Option are approved, the requisite amendment to this Agreement will add the 


appropriate Bristol water and sewer districts to this Agreement.  Bristol executed the 1997 


Cooperative Agreement on behalf of all of the Bristol parties named in the 1997 Cooperative 


Agreement and hereby executes this Agreement on their behalf for the purpose of amending the 


1997 Cooperative Agreement. 


 







 


28 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Approved by the Pleasant Prairie Village Board on the _____ day of _______________, 2019. 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


By:       
 John P. Steinbrink 
Title: President 


Attest:       
 Jane C. Snell 
Title: Village Clerk 
 
 
Approved by the Pleasant Prairie Water Utility on the ____ day of ________________, 2019. 
 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 


By:       
 John P. Steinbrink 
Title: President 


Attest:       
 Jane C. Snell 
Title: Village Clerk 
 
 
Approved by the Pleasant Prairie Sewer Utility on the ____ day of ________________, 2019. 
 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 


By:       
 John P. Steinbrink 
Title: President 


Attest:       
 Jane C. Snell 
Title: Village Clerk 







 


29 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Approved by the Village of Bristol Board on the _____ day of _______________, 2019. 


VILLAGE OF BRISTOL 


By:       
 Mike Farrell 
Title: President 


Attest:       
 Amy Klemko 
Title: Village Clerk 







 


30 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Exhibit Table 
 
 


Exhibits to Water Agreement 
 
 
A Bristol Utility District 5 Boundary 


B Wholesale Water System Layout 


C Retail Water System Layout 


D Retail Water System Phasing 


E Retail Water System Timeline 


F Approved Water Utility Easement 


G Approved Water Dedication Document 


H Sanitary Sewer System Layout 


I Approved Sewer Utility Easement 


J Approved Sewer Dedication Document 


K 68 Acre parcel in Bristol Owned by VOPP Described as the “Land” 


 







 


31 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Exhibit A 
 


Bristol Utility District 5 Boundary 


 
 
  







 


 32  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Exhibit B 
 


Wholesale Water System Layout 


Drawing of Wholesale Water System with Approximate Layout Including “Delivery Point” 


 
  







 


 33  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Exhibit C 
 


Retail Water System Layout 


Showing Starting Point of Bristol Investments and Where VOPP Investments End 


 
  







 


 34  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Exhibit D 
 


Retail Water System Phasing 


 
  







 


 35  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Exhibit E 
 


Retail Water System Timeline 
 


Phase Name Work needed Color or Code on 
Attached map 


Approximate Timing 


VOPP Initial Work Connect current 
PPWU System at 
128th Avenue to the 
HSA connection point 
on the east side 


Light Blue Solid - 
VOPP Installed Main 


Prior to or when 
HSA starts Phase 1 


HSA Service System from starting 
point above, west to 
CTH U, then south to 
SW corner of 
cemetery 


Dark Blue Solid - 
HSA Phase 1 


When HSA starts 
above grade 
construction on 
Phase 1, or within 6-
years of the date 
Janko Phase 1 has 
been completed 


HSA Oversizing Oversizing and extra 
pipes from CTH U 
north to UD5 
boundary 


Dark Blue Dashed - 
HSA Phase 2 


Before occupancy 
permit is issued for 
HSA Phase 2 
construction 


Janko Service Connect current 
PPWU system at 
UD5 boundary on 
CTH Q, west to CTH 
U, north to SW corner 
of cemetery 


Red Solid – Janko 
Phase 1A 


When Janko starts 
above grade 
construction on 
Phase 1, or within 6-
years of the date 
HSA Phase 1 has 
been completed 


Janko Service Connect Janko 
Phase 1A on CTH U, 
west to middle of 
Janko development 
along access road 


Red Dashed - Janko 
Phase 1B 


When Janko starts 
above grade 
construction on 
Phase 1 


Janko Oversizing Connect Janko 
Phase 1B, south 
along access road to 
CTH Q, then east to 
existing main on CTH 
U 


Yellow Solid - Janko 
Phase 2 


Before occupancy 
permit is issued for 
Janko Phase 2 
construction 


NW UD5 Service Schematic future 
location of piping to 
connect to existing 
system 


Green Dashed - NW 
UD5 Loop 


When any 
development occurs 
in NW corner of 
BUD5 


SE UD5 Service Schematic future 
location of piping to 
connect to existing 
system 


Purple Dashed - SE 
UD5 Loop 


When any 
development occurs 
in SE corner of 
BUD5 


 







 


 36  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Exhibit F 
 


Approved Water Utility Easement 


[Attached to this cover sheet]







 


Grant of Water Main Access, Construction, 
Operation and Maintenance Easement  


Document Number Document Title 


Recording Area 


Name and Return Address 


 
Village of Pleasant Prairie 
9915 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 


 
Parcel Identification Number (PIN) 


 


 
 


37 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


 


THIS GRANT OF WATER MAIN ACCESS, 
CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION AND 
MAINTENANCE EASEMENT is made this ______ 
day of __________, 20__ by ___________________, 
its successors and assigns (the “Owner”), to the 
Village of Pleasant Prairie, and its successors and 
assigns (the “Village”). 


WITNESSETH: 


That for and in consideration of the sum of 
One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable 
consideration, in hand paid, the receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the Owner of the property 
located in the Village of Bristol, County of Kenosha, 
State of Wisconsin, more particularly legally 
described on Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference (the “Property”) has 
this day bargained and sold and by these presents 
does dedicate, grant, bargain, sell, convey, transfer 
and deliver to the Village, its successors and assigns 
forever, a water main access, construction, operation 
and maintenance easement and right-of-way in those  
portions of the Property (the “Easement Property”), as illustrated and described in Exhibit B 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the “Water Main Access, Construction, 
Operation and Maintenance Easement”), including the perpetual right to enter upon the Property 
at any time that it may see fit, to access, reconstruct, maintain, operate, use and repair the 
underground water main(s), and any and all structures, valves, fire hydrants, or other 
appurtenances which may in any manner be a part of or portion of such water mains (collectively 
referred to as the “Water System Improvements”) for the purpose of conveying water across, 
through and under the Property, together with the right to excavate, reconstruct, maintain, use 
and repair the Water System Improvements, and the further right to remove trees, bushes, 
parking/driveway pavement areas, sidewalk, curb and gutter, signage, underground and other 
obstructions interfering with the location, reconstruction, use and maintenance of said Water 
System Improvements. 


This grant specifically includes the right for the Village to perform annual testing, 
flushing, maintenance and inspections of the Water System Improvements as deemed necessary 
by the Village.  Such annual testing, flushing, maintenance and inspection includes as applicable 
and without limitation, annual flushing of the lines, painting of the fire hydrants, annual 
inspections, repair and replacement of valves, and all other items as required by the Village. 


This grant specifically includes the right for the Village to reconstruct and repair the Water 
System Improvements as deemed necessary by the Village.  Upon completion of any such 







 


 38  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


reconstruction or repair to the Water System Improvements, the Village will restore the Property 
to its prior grade in accordance with the following limitations:  (a) the Village shall backfill and 
grade with gravel in any paved areas, and (b) the Village shall place topsoil and replant grass seed 
in any landscaped areas.  The Owner shall be responsible for any and all such costs and charges 
for restoring the Property beyond the stated limitations.  If the Village conducts any additional 
restoration on the property, the Owner shall promptly reimburse the Village no later than thirty 
(30) days after receipt of an invoice from the Village itemizing those costs and charges incurred 
by the Village.  Any additional restoration may include without limitation, the replacement of 
pavement, sidewalk, concrete curbs, signage, landscaping or other improvements resulting from 
such reconstruction and repair.   


The Owner hereby represents and warrants that (i) there are no liens or encumbrances upon 
the Easement Property and (ii) there is no hazardous substance, pollution or contamination on or 
in any portion of the Easement Property.  These representations and warranties shall survive the 
grant of this Water Main Access, Construction, Operation and Maintenance Easement. 


The Owner, for itself and its successors in interest, reserves the right to relocate the Water 
Main Access, Construction, Operation and Maintenance Easement and Water System 
Improvements, at the Owner's sole cost and expense, to another location upon the Property which 
is acceptable to the Village in the event that the improvements upon the Property are modified to 
an extent or in a manner which are incompatible with the current location of the Water Main 
Access, Construction, Operation and Maintenance Easement subject to all of the conditions, 
regulations and requirements of the Village set forth in the Village’s Ordinances.   


The Village, and its successors and assigns, to have and to hold forever said Water Main 
Access, Construction, Operation and Maintenance Easement.  


The Owner, for itself and for its successors and assigns, does hereby covenant with the 
Village, its successors and assigns forever, that it is lawfully seized and possessed of the Property 
above described, and that it has good and lawful right to convey it or any part thereof, and it is free 
from all encumbrances.   


 


[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]  







 


 39  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, _______________________ has executed this document on 
the day and year above written. 


       
 
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title       


 
 
 
 
STATE OF ____________ ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 


Personally came before me this ____ day of ______________, 20__ the above-named 
______________________, the _____________ of __________________________, and to me 
known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same. 


 
 
       
Notary Public, 
   County,     
Commission:      


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This instrument was drafted by: 
Scott L. Langlois 
Quarles & Brady LLP 
411 East Wisconsin Avenue 
Milwaukee, WI  53202







 
 


40 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


EXHIBIT A 
 


Property Description 
 


 
 







 
 


41 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


EXHIBIT B 
 


Location of Easement 
 
 


  







 


 42  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Exhibit G 
 


Approved Water Dedication Document 


DEDICATION AND ACCEPTANCE 


 


THIS DEDICATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
is made this ______ day of __________, 20__ by ___________________, its successors and 
assigns (the “Owner”), to the Village of Pleasant Prairie, and its successors and assigns (the 
“Village”). 


WITNESSETH: 


That for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable 
consideration, in hand paid, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Owner of the 
property located in the Village of Bristol, County of Kenosha, State of Wisconsin, more 
particularly legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference 
(the “Property”) has this day bargained and sold and by these presents does dedicate, grant, 
bargain, sell, convey, transfer and deliver to the Village, its successors and assigns forever, the 
underground water main(s), and any and all structures, valves, fire hydrants, or other 
appurtenances which may in any manner be a part of or portion of such water mains (collectively 
referred to as the “Water System Improvements”) located in those portions of the Property, as 
illustrated and described in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the 
“Easement Property”).   


The Village, and its successors and assigns, to have and to hold forever said Water System 
Improvements to be accessed, constructed, operated and maintained pursuant to the Grant of Water 
Main Access, Construction, Operation and Maintenance Easement dated _____________, granted 
by Owner to the Village and recorded with the Kenosha County Register of Deeds as Document 
No. __________ (the “Easement”).  


Owner hereby represents and warrants that (i) there are no liens or encumbrances on the 
Water System Improvements nor encumbering the Easement and (ii) there is no hazardous 
substance, pollution or contamination on or in the Water System Improvements or any portion of 
the Easement Property.  These representations and warranties shall survive the dedication and 
acceptance provided hereunder. 


The Owner, for itself and for its successors and assigns, does hereby covenant with the 
Village, its successors and assigns forever, that it is lawfully seized and possessed of the Water 
System Improvements, and that it has good and lawful right to convey it or any part thereof, and 
it is free from all encumbrances. 


 


 


[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]  







 


 43  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


_______________________ has executed this document on the day and year above 
written. 


       
 
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title       


 


 


The foregoing dedication of Water System Improvements is hereby accepted this ______ 
day of _______________, 20__ by the Village of Pleasant Prairie. 


VILLAGE: 
 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, a 
Wisconsin municipal corporation 


 
 
      By:       
       Name:  John P. Steinbrink 
       Title:     Village President 
 
 
      By:       
       Name:  Jane C. Snell 
       Title:     Village Clerk 
 
 







 
 


44 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


EXHIBIT A 
 


Property Description 
 


 
 







 
 


45 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


EXHIBIT B 
 


Location of Easement 
 
 
 
  







 


 46  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


 
Exhibit H 


 
Sanitary Sewer System Layout 


 
 


  







 


 47  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Exhibit I 
 


Approved Sewer Utility Easement 


[Attached to this cover sheet]







 


Grant of Sanitary Sewer Access, 
Construction, Operation and  


Maintenance Easement  


Document Number Document Title 


Recording Area 


Name and Return Address 


 
Village of Pleasant Prairie 
9915 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 


 
Parcel Identification Number (PIN) 


 


 
 


48 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


 
THIS GRANT OF SANITARY SEWER 


ACCESS, CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION AND 
MAINTENANCE EASEMENT is made this ______ 
day of __________, 20__ by ___________________, 
its successors and assigns (the “Owner”), to the 
Village of Pleasant Prairie, and its successors and 
assigns (the “Village”). 


WITNESSETH: 


That for and in consideration of the sum of 
One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable 
consideration, in hand paid, the receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the Owner of the property 
located in the Village of Bristol, County of Kenosha, 
State of Wisconsin, more particularly legally 
described on Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference (the “Property”) has 
this day bargained and sold and by these presents 
does dedicate, grant, bargain, sell, convey, transfer 
and deliver to the Village, its successors and assigns 
forever, a sanitary sewer access, construction, 
operation and maintenance easement and right-of-
way in those portions of the Property (the “Easement  
Property”) , as illustrated and described in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference (the “Sanitary Sewer Access, Construction, Operation and Maintenance Easement”), 
including the perpetual right to enter upon the Property at any time that it may see fit, to access, 
reconstruct, maintain, operate, use and repair the underground sanitary sewer(s), and any and all 
manholes, sampling manholes, structures, manhole markers, or other appurtenances which may 
in any manner be a part of or portion of such sanitary sewers (collectively referred to as the 
“Sanitary Sewer Improvements”) for the purpose of conveying sewage across, through and under 
the Property, together with the right to excavate, reconstruct, maintain, use and repair the 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements, and the further right to remove trees, bushes, parking/driveway 
pavement areas, sidewalk, curb and gutter, signage, underground and other obstructions 
interfering with the location, reconstruction, use and maintenance of said Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements. 


This grant specifically includes the right for the Village to perform annual testing, 
cleaning, maintenance and inspections of the Sanitary Sewer Improvements as deemed necessary 
by the Village.  Such annual testing, cleaning, maintenance and inspection includes as applicable 
and without limitation, televising sewers, cleaning of the lines, visual inspections, repair and 
replacement of valves, and all other items as required by the Village. 


This grant specifically includes the right for the Village to sample the effluent through the 
sampling manholes to confirm conformance with all applicable regulations. 







 


 49  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


This grant specifically includes the right for the Village to reconstruct and repair the 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements as deemed necessary by the Village.  Upon completion of any such 
reconstruction or repair to the Sanitary Sewer Improvements, the Village will restore the Property 
to its prior grade in accordance with the following limitations:  (a) the Village shall backfill and 
grade with gravel in any paved areas, and (b) the Village shall place topsoil and replant grass seed 
in any landscaped areas.  The Owner shall be responsible for any and all such costs and charges 
for restoring the Property beyond the stated limitations.  If the Village conducts any additional 
restoration on the property, the Owner shall promptly reimburse the Village no later than thirty 
(30) days after receipt of an invoice from the Village itemizing those costs and charges incurred 
by the Village.  Any additional restoration may include without limitation, the replacement of 
pavement, sidewalk, concrete curbs, signage, landscaping or other improvements resulting from 
such reconstruction and repair.   


The Owner hereby represents and warrants that (i) there are no liens or encumbrances upon 
the Easement Property and (ii) there is no hazardous substance, pollution or contamination on or 
in any portion of the Easement Property.  These representations and warranties shall survive the 
grant of this Sanitary Sewer Access, Construction, Operation and Maintenance Easement. 


The Owner, for itself and its successors in interest, reserves the right to relocate the Sanitary 
Sewer Access, Construction, Operation and Maintenance Easement and Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements, at the Owner's sole cost and expense, to another location upon the Property which 
is acceptable to the Village in the event that the improvements upon the Property are modified to 
an extent or in a manner which are incompatible with the current location of the Sanitary Sewer 
Access, Construction, Operation and Maintenance Easement subject to all of the conditions, 
regulations and requirements of the Village set forth in the Village’s Ordinances.   


The Village, and its successors and assigns, to have and to hold forever said Sanitary Sewer 
Main Access, Construction, Operation and Maintenance Easement.  


The Owner, for itself and for its successors and assigns, does hereby covenant with the 
Village, its successors and assigns forever, that it is lawfully seized and possessed of the Property 
above described, and that it has good and lawful right to convey it or any part thereof, and it is free 
from all encumbrances.   


 


[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]  







 


 50  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, _______________________ has executed this document on 
the day and year above written. 


       
 
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title       


 
 
 
 
STATE OF ____________ ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 


Personally came before me this ____ day of ______________, 20__ the above-named 
______________________, the _____________ of __________________________, and to me 
known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same. 


 
 
       
Notary Public, 
   County,     
Commission:      


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This instrument was drafted by: 
Scott L. Langlois 
Quarles & Brady LLP 
411 East Wisconsin Avenue 
Milwaukee, WI  53202







 
 


51 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


EXHIBIT A 
 


Property Description 
 


 
 







 
 


52 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


EXHIBIT B 
 


Location of Easement 
 
 


  







 


 53  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


Exhibit J 
 


Approved Sewer Dedication Document 


DEDICATION AND ACCEPTANCE 


 


THIS DEDICATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS is 
made this ______ day of __________, 20__ by ___________________, its successors and assigns 
(the “Owner”), to the Village of Pleasant Prairie, and its successors and assigns (the “Village”). 


WITNESSETH: 


That for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable 
consideration, in hand paid, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Owner of the 
property located in the Village of Bristol, County of Kenosha, State of Wisconsin, more 
particularly legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference 
(the “Property”) has this day bargained and sold and by these presents does dedicate, grant, 
bargain, sell, convey, transfer and deliver to the Village, its successors and assigns forever, the 
underground sanitary sewer(s), and any and all manholes, sampling manholes, structures, manhole 
markers or other appurtenances which may in any manner be a part of or portion of such sanitary 
sewers (collectively referred to as the “Sanitary Sewer Improvements”) located in those portions 
of the Property, as illustrated and described in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by reference (the “Easement Property”).  


The Village, and its successors and assigns, to have and to hold forever said Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements to be accessed, constructed, operated and maintained pursuant to the Grant of 
Sanitary Sewer Access, Construction, Operation and Maintenance Easement dated 
_____________, granted by Owner to the Village and recorded with the Kenosha County Register 
of Deeds as Document No. __________ (the “Easement”).  


Owner hereby represents and warrants that (i) there are no liens or encumbrances on the 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements nor encumbering the Easement and (ii) there is no hazardous 
substance, pollution or contamination on or in the Sanitary Sewer Improvements or any portion of 
the Easement Property.  These representations and warranties shall survive the dedication and 
acceptance provided hereunder. 


The Owner, for itself and for its successors and assigns, does hereby covenant with the 
Village, its successors and assigns forever, that it is lawfully seized and possessed of the Sanitary 
Sewer Improvements, and that it has good and lawful right to convey it or any part thereof, and it 
is free from all encumbrances. 


 


 


[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]  







 


 54  
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


_______________________ has executed this document on the day and year above 
written. 


       
 
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title       


 


 


The foregoing dedication of Sanitary Sewer Improvements is hereby accepted this ______ 
day of _______________, 20__ by the Village of Pleasant Prairie. 


VILLAGE: 
 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, a 
Wisconsin municipal corporation 


 
 
      By:       
       Name:  John P. Steinbrink 
       Title:     Village President 
 
 
      By:       
       Name:  Jane C. Snell 
       Title:     Village Clerk 
 
 







 
 


55 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


EXHIBIT A 
 


Property Description 
 


 
 







 
 


56 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


EXHIBIT B 
 


Location of Easement 
 
 
 


  







 
 


57 
QB\750177.00115\56559794.12  


 
Exhibit K 


 
68 Acre Parcel in Bristol Owned by VOPP Described as the “Land” 


 


 
 
 
 







ORD. NO. 19-08 


ORDINANCE TO AMEND 


THE VILLAGE MUNICIPAL CODE (SECTIONS 234-14 AND 234-15)  


RELATED TO NOTICES AND ABATEMENT RELATED TO NUISANCES AS DEFINED BY 


ARTICLE II OF CHAPTER 234 OF THE VILLAGE MUNICIPAL CODE  


 


THE VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA 


COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DO HEREBY ORDAIN THAT THE FOLLOWING MUNICIPAL CODES 


BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 


1. Section 234-14 of the Village Municipal Code entitled “Notice and order” is 


hereby amended to read as follows: 


234-14  Notice and order.    


Whenever the existence of any such nuisance as defined in this article comes to the 


attention the Chief of Police or his/her designee, in the case of a nuisance motor vehicle, 


or the Community Development Director or his/her designee, in the case of other 


accumulations of junk and unsightly debris, a notice of violation shall be given to the 


property owner and/or occupant of the premises in the following manner. 


A.  Form. Such notice and order shall: 


(1)  Be in writing. 


(2)  Include a statement of the violation with reference to the applicable 


provisions of this article. 


(a) With respect to nuisance automobiles located on private property, 


the notice shall contain an order that the occupant shall, within 30 


days, repair, assemble, make the vehicle operable and roadworthy 


and license any vehicle which may not be licensed or, in the 


alternative, place such vehicle in a garage or enclosed structure or 


remove the vehicle from the property and place such vehicle within a 


duly authorized and licensed sales, repair or salvage business 


lawfully operating within a properly zoned area and in compliance 


with all state and local laws, rules, regulations, licenses and permits. 


The notice shall further advise the owner of the vehicle that if the 


nuisance is not corrected, the vehicle is subject to being towed and 


stored at the owner's expense and, if not redeemed, disposed of by 


the tower as authorized by state law. 


(b)  With respect to junk and unsightly debris, the notice shall contain an 


order to place such junk in an enclosed structure or remove it from 


the premises.  The notice shall further advise the owner that if the 


nuisance is not corrected, the Village may direct its employees or its 


agents to enter onto the subject premises and place the property in 


compliance and dispose of the junk and debris, with the costs thereof 


being charged to the owner or assessed as a special tax assessment 


against the real estate. 


(3)  Advise the occupant and/or owner that he is additionally subject to a money 


forfeiture for each day of a violation of this article exists. pursuant to § 234-


15 of this article. 


(4)  Include a notice of the hearing process. 


(5)  Be served upon the responsible person or occupant, where relevant. 


 







B.  Method of service.  Any of the following methods of service are acceptable: Such 


notice and order shall be deemed to be properly served if a copy thereof is given as 


follows: 


(1)  Notice shall be given to the occupant of the premises in the following 


manner: 


(a)  By personally serving notice upon the occupant of the land where the 


nuisance exists in the manner provided by Wisconsin State Statutes 


for the service of process. 


(b)  If with reasonable diligence the occupant of the land upon which the 


nuisance exists cannot be served under Subsection B(1)(a), then 


notice shall be given by posting a copy of the notice on or about the 


main entrance to the structure occupied by the occupant of the 


subject premises and by mailing a copy by United States first class 


mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the occupant of the premises. 


(1)(2) In the case of a nuisance automobile, notice shall also be given to the owner 


of the motor vehicle by personal service or via regular U.S. mail  as provided 


in Subsection B(1)(a). If with reasonable diligence the owner cannot be 


personally served, then notice shall be given by mailing a copy of the notice 


to the owner's address as shown on the records of the Wisconsin 


Department of Transportation and by posting a copy of the notice on the 


vehicle. 


(2)(3) In the case of junk and debris, notice shall also be given to the owner of 


record of the real estate where the junk and debris are located and to the 


occupant of any building on said property by personal service or via regular 


U.S. mail.  in the manner provided in Subsection B(1)(a). If with reasonable 


diligence the owner cannot be personally served, then notice shall be given 


by mailing a copy of the notice to the owner's last known address.  If the 


property owner cannot be served as noted above, then said written notice 


may be given by posting a copy of the notice on or about the main entrance 


to the building of the subject premises. 


2. Section 234-15 of the Village Municipal Code entitled “Abatement of nuisance; 


violations and penalties” is hereby amended to read as follows: 


§ 234-15  Abatement of nuisance; violations and penalties.  


The following procedures or any combination thereof may be utilized to eliminate the 


nuisance: 


A.  Nuisance motor vehicles. 


(1)  With respect to nuisance motor vehicles upon private property, if the 


violation described in the notice has not been remedied within the thirty-day 


period for compliance or, in the event that a notice for hearing is timely 


filed, a hearing is had and the existence of the violation is affirmed, the 


Village or its designee shall have the right to take possession of the nuisance 


vehicle and tow it from the premises, with the cost and expense charged to 


the owner or assessed as a special tax assessment against the real estate. 


Any unclaimed towed vehicles may be disposed of by towers through means 


and procedures authorized by law. 


(2)  Notice of removal. Within 48 hours of the removal of such junked motor 


vehicle, the Chief of Police, or his designee, shall give notice to the 


registered owner of the vehicle, if known, and to the owner or occupant of 


the private property from which the vehicle was removed that said vehicle 


or vehicles have been impounded and stored for violation of this article. The 







notice shall give the location where the vehicle or vehicles are stored and 


the costs incurred by the Village for the removal. 


B.  Other junk and debris. With respect to other junk and debris, if the violation 


described in the notice has not been remedied within the thirty-day period or, in 


the event that a notice for hearing is timely filed, a hearing is had and the 


existence of the violation is affirmed, the Village may direct its employees or its 


agents to enter onto the subject premises and place the property in compliance and 


dispose of the junk and debris, with the costs thereof being charged to the owner 


or assessed as a special tax assessment against the real estate. 


C.  Additional remedy. As to any nuisance described herein, the Village may issue a 


municipal citation to the owner or occupant for violation of this article which, upon 


conviction, would subject the owner or occupant to a fine not to exceed $645 $691, 


which includes court costs, for each day the violation remains in existence following 


the service of notice for the violation and after any appeal has been exhausted. 


Adopted this 6th day of May, 2019. 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


ATTEST:  


 


  


John P. Steinbrink 


Village President 


  


Jane C. Snell 


Village Clerk 


Posted:    


 


08-234-14 and 234-15 notice and order-junk and debris 


CODE1904-004 







VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION #19-12 


 
RESOLUTION TO INITIATE THE CHANGE OF THE OFFICIAL STREET NAME AND 


NOTIFYING SEVERAL PROPERTY OWNERS IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE,  
KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


 
The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, 
pursuant to Article IV of the Village Ordinances. 


WHEREAS, the reconstruction and increased business activity along Interstate 94/43 
has required the Village to re-examine the naming conflict from both frontage roads caused 
by sharing the same name, 120th Avenue. The Village staff recommends that changing the 
name of the West Frontage Road is the optimal way to address the mater; and 


WHEREAS, no existing mailing addresses would be affected by the proposed street 
name change to 122 Avenue; and 


WHEREAS, the Village Board of Trustees will hold a Public Hearing to consider said 
changes on June 10, 2019. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Village Board of Trustees, as follows: 


1. That the Village Board of Trustees hereby initiates and petitions to change an official 
street name and addresses within the Village of Pleasant Prairie; 


2. That this proposed change is hereby referred to the Village Plan Commission for 
further study and recommendation; and 


3. That the Village Board of Trustees is not, by this Resolution, making any 
determination regarding the merits of the proposed change, but rather, is only 
initiating the process by which the proposed change can be evaluated. 


Adopted this the 10 day of June 2019. 
 


        VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
ATTEST: 
 
 


______________________________ 
______________________________  John P. Steinbrink 
Jane C. Snell                                   Village President 
Village Clerk 
 
 
Posted:  __________________________ 
 
12 Initial Street Name Change West Frontage Rd 
Dev1904-014 







VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION #19-15 


RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE DISCONTINUANCE OF A PORTION 128TH AVENUE 
IN PRAIRIE HIGHLAND CORPORATE PARK 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, 
pursuant to Section 66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes, may initiate the discontinuance in 
whole or in part of any road, street, slip, lane or alley by the introduction of a resolution 
declaring that the public interest requires it. 


WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie, owner of the adjacent land is requesting 
to discontinue (or vacate) a portion of 128th Avenue right-of-way north of 104th Street in 
Prairie Highlands Corporate Park that was never constructed and is no longer needed 
because the proposed shared use path is being eliminated and being replaced with a 
sidewalk and Gold Bear Drive will not be extended west of 128th Avenue; and 


WHEREAS, this portion of right-of-way was dedicated by CSM’s 2849 and 2866; and 


WHEREAS, a plat of survey and legal description of the public street areas 
encompassing the discontinuance has been prepared and is shown on Exhibit A; and 


WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie Plan Commission shall review said legal 
descriptions and plats of survey and forward a recommendation regarding the 
discontinuance of the portion of rights-of-ways to the Village Board; and 


WHEREAS, a Public Hearing to consider this discontinuance shall be set before the 
Village Board not less than 40 days after the passage of this Resolution. 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that consideration of the discontinuance is a matter 
to be decided by the Village Board of Trustees at the July 1, 2019 Public Hearing. 


Adopted this 6th day of May, 2019. 


        VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
 
 


______________________________ 
John P. Steinbrink 


ATTEST:      Village President 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jane C. Snell 
Village Clerk 
 
vb res #19-15 initial 
VAC1904-001 







pherrick

Typewritten Text

EXHIBIT A



pherrick

Typewritten Text



pherrick

Typewritten Text



pherrick

Typewritten Text























MEMORANDUM 


To: Village President and Village Board of Trustees 


From: Jane C. Snell 


Date: April 15, 2019 


Re: MOD Super Fast Pizza – Liquor License Agent Change 


 


 


9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.694.1400 • Fax 262.694.4734 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 
 


Office of the Village Clerk 


MOD Super Fast Pizza has submitted a request to change the agent who holds the Class “B” Fermented Malt 
Beverage and “Class C” Wine Licenses for the MOD Super Fast Pizza located at 9250 76th Street, Suite A. 
Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin.  The previous agent is no longer an employee at this establishment.  The 
corporation has requested Benjamin J. Henneberry be appointed as the successor agent.  The requirements 
have been satisfied in submitting this request and Chief Smetana has completed and approved the police 
check with respect to Mr. Henneberry.    


 


I recommend approval of Benjamin J. Henneberry as successor agent for the MOD Super Fast Pizza. 


 







MEMORANDUM 


To: Village President and Village Board of Trustees 


From: Jane C. Snell 


Date: April 16, 2019 


Re: Cheddar’s Scratch Kitchen #2087/Liquor License Agent Change 


 


 


9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.694.1400 • Fax 262.694.4734 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 
 


Office of the Village Clerk 


Cheddar’s Scratch Kitchen has submitted a request to change the agent who holds the Class “B” Fermented 
Malt Beverage and “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor Licenses for the Cheddar’s Scratch Kitchen #2087 located at 
10366 77th Street, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin.  The previous agent is no longer an employee at this 
establishment.  The corporation has requested Brian J. Schwanz be appointed as the successor agent.  The 
requirements have been satisfied in submitting this request and Chief Smetana has completed and approved 
the police check with respect to Mr. Schwanz.    


 


I recommend approval of Brian J. Schwanz as successor agent for the Cheddar’s Scratch Kitchen. 


 







VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


BUILDING SAFETY MONTH – MAY, 2019 


RESOLUTION #19-13 


 


 WHEREAS, our Village’s is committed to recognizing that our growth and strength 


depends on the safety and economic value of the homes, buildings and infrastructure that serve 


our citizens, both in everyday life and in times of natural disaster, and;   


 


 WHEREAS, our confidence in the structural integrity of these buildings that make up 


our community is achieved through the devotion of vigilant guardians––building safety and fire 


prevention officials, architects, engineers, builders, tradespeople, design professionals, laborers, 


plumbers and others in the construction industry––who work year-round to ensure the safe 


construction of buildings, and; 


WHEREAS, these guardians are dedicated members of the International Code Council, a 


U.S. based organization, that brings together local, state and federal officials that are experts in 


the built environment to create and implement the highest-quality codes to protect us in the 


buildings where we live, learn, work, play, and; 


WHEREAS, our nation benefits economically and technologically from using the 


International Codes®  that are developed by a national, voluntary consensus codes and standards 


developing organization, our government is able to avoid the high cost and complexity of 


developing and maintaining these codes, which are the most widely adopted building safety and 


fire prevention codes in the world;  


WHEREAS, these modern building codes include safeguards to protect the public from 


natural disasters such as hurricanes, snowstorms, tornadoes, wildland fires, floods and 


earthquake; which, according to a FEMA-commissioned study by the National Institute of 


Building Sciences, provide $11 in future mitigation benefits for every dollar invested, and; 


WHEREAS, Building Safety Month is sponsored by the International Code Council to 


remind the public about the critical role of our communities’ largely unknown protectors of 


public safety––our local code officials––who assure us of safe, efficient and livable buildings 


that are essential to America’s prosperity, and; 


WHEREAS, “No Code. No Confidence.” the theme for Building Safety Month 2019, 


encourages all Americans to raise awareness of the importance of safe and resilient construction; 


fire prevention; disaster mitigation, and new technologies in the construction industry. Building 


Safety Month 2019 encourages appropriate steps everyone can take to ensure the safety of our 


built environment, and recognizes that the implementation of safety codes by local and state 


agencies has saved lives and protected homes and businesses, and, 


 







WHEREAS, each year, in observance of Building Safety Month, Americans are asked to 


consider the commitment to  improve building safety and economic investment at home and in 


the community, and to acknowledge the essential service provided to all of us by local and state 


building departments, fire prevention bureaus and federal agencies in protecting lives and 


property. 


 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Village of Pleasant Prairie hereby 


proclaims the month of May 2019 as Building Safety Month and encourages our citizens to join 


with their communities in participation in Building Safety Month activities. 


 


  Adopted this 6th day of May, 2019. 


 


       VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


 


       __________________________________ 


       John P. Steinbrink 


       Village President 


ATTEST: 


 


 


___________________________ 


Jane C. Snell 


Village Clerk 


 


 


 







 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE  
RESOLUTION #19-14        


DESIGNATING THE WEEK OF MAY 19 -25, 2019 
AS NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 


 


 WHEREAS, public works services provided in our community are an integral 


part of our citizens’ everyday lives; and 


 WHEREAS, the support of an understanding and informed citizenry is vital to 


the efficient operation of public works systems and programs such as water, sewers, 


streets and highways, public buildings, and solid waste collection; and 


WHEREAS, the health, safety and comfort of this community greatly depends 


on these facilities and services; and 


WHEREAS, the quality and effectiveness of these facilities, as well as their 


planning, design, and construction, is vitally dependent upon the efforts and skill of 


public works employees; and 


WHEREAS, the efficiency of the qualified and dedicated personnel who staff 


public works departments is materially influenced by the people’s attitude and 


understanding of the importance of the work they perform, 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Village of Pleasant Prairie 


hereby proclaims the week of May 19 -25, 2019, as National Public Works Week 


in the Village of Pleasant Prairie and urges all citizens and civic organizations to 


acquaint themselves with the issues involved in providing our public works and to 


recognize the contributions which public works employees make every day to our 


health, safety, comfort, and quality of life. 


Adopted this 6th day of May, 2019. 


 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


 


_________________________________ 


John Steinbrink 


Village President 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


____________________________ 


Jane Snell 


Village Clerk 







 
 
      


              1241 John Q Hammons Dr. 
               P.O. Box 5555 
               Madison, WI 53705-0555 
 


VIA E-MAIL ONLY 
 
 
April 29, 2019 
 
 
 
Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Attn: Ms. Vesna Savic, Executive Secretary 
9915 39th Ave. 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
 
 
RE: Our Claim #: WM000301740234 
 Date of Loss: 12/05/2018 
 Claimant: We Energies  
   Claims Room A145 
   P.O. Box 1132 
   Milwaukee, WI 53201 
 
  Loss location: 103 Block of 28th Ave. 
                                     Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
 
 
 
Dear Ms. Savic: 
 
As you know, Statewide Services, Inc. administers the claims for the League of Wisconsin Municipalities Mutual Insurance 
(LWMMI), which provides the insurance coverage for the Village of Pleasant Prairie. We are in receipt of the above-
captioned claim involving claimant costs to repair a gas line damaged during Village excavating operations.  
 
We have completed our investigation, and we recommend that the Village disallow this claim pursuant to the Wisconsin 
Statute for disallowance of claim 893.80(1g). The disallowance of the claim in this manner will shorten the statute of 
limitations period to six months.  
 
The Village damaged the gas line during excavating operations; however, Village Public Works Director, Mr. John 
Steinbrink, advised that the line in question was not marked or flagged, thus staff had no idea the line was there as they 
performed their work. Therefore, we hold the Village bears no liability for damaging the unmarked gas line, and we 
recommend that the Village disallow the claim. Once more, there is no evidence that the Village failed to adhere to any 
ministerial duty—or mandate—regarding excavating actions, and absent a ministerial duty WI statute 893.80 affords the 
Village discretionary immunity.  
 
I have enclosed a sample Notice of Disallowance for your use, should you choose to use it, or you may use your own. Please 
send your disallowance, on your letterhead, directly to the claimant at the above listed address. This should be sent certified 
or registered (restricted) mail, and it must be received by the claimant within 120 days after you received the claim. Please 
send me copies of the letters for our file. 
 







Thank you for your attention to the above, Vesna, and please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions. 
 
 
Best regards,  


Doug Detlie 
Douglass A. Detlie 
Casualty Claims Specialist 
Office:  608-828-5503 
Fax:  800-720-3512 
E-mail: ddetlie@statewidesvcs.com 
 
Cc: Rick Kalscheuer, Agent 











































 


 
 
 


DALE W. ARENZ, RETIRED 730 N. GRAND AVENUE PAUL E. ALEXY 
DONALD S. MOLTER, JR., RETIRED WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53186 R. VALJON ANDERSON  
JOHN P. MACY Telephone (262) 548-1340 MATTEO REGINATO 
H. STANLEY RIFFLE   Email: mreginato@ammr.net LUKE A. MARTELL 
  COURT COMMISSIONER Facsimile (262) 548-9211 SAMANTHA R. SCHMID 
ERIC J. LARSON  STEPHEN J. CENTINARIO, JR. 
REMZY D. BITAR  TIMOTHY A. SUHA 
  AMY E. FRY-GALOW 


 


 


 


May 1, 2019 
 
 
Sent Via Email  
 
Village Board of Trustees 
c/o Mr. Tom Shircel 
Asst. Village Administrator 
Village of Pleasant Prairie   
9915 39th venue 
Pleasant Prairie WI, 53158  
 
 Re: Gasser, Idala & John v. Village of Pleasant Prairie 
 
 
 
Dear Village Board of Trustees, 
 
 We have been retained on behalf of the Village’s insurance carrier, the League of 
Wisconsin Municipalities Mutual Insurance Company (LWMMI), regarding the claim of 
John and Idala Gasser, copies of which are attached hereto. 
 
 At this time, there is no pending lawsuit filed in court.  Instead, the notice of claim 
by Idala and John Gasser relates to certain statutory steps towards filing a lawsuit under 
Wis. Stat. s. 893.80(1d).  In turn, the Village Board can review these claims at this time 
and elect to accept, compromise or disallow the claims.     
 
 This letter serves to recommend that the Village Board disallow this claim.  The 
Village Board should do so at its next scheduled meeting.  Our review of the matter leads 
us to believe that the Village has meritorious defenses to the claims.  We have shared 
our confidential analysis with the Village’s insurance carrier and with Mr. Shircel.  Upon 
review of our analysis, it has been determined that the Village Board should take steps to 
disallow this claim and to have the Village serve notice of this disallowance upon the 
claimants in order to shorten the statute of limitations for some of the potential claims.   







Village Board of Trustees 


Mr. Tom Shircel 


5/1/2019 


Page 2 


  


MUNICIPAL LAW & LITIGATION GROUP, S.C. 


ARENZ, MOLTER, MACY, RIFFLE, LARSON & BITAR 


 


 
 If the disallowance of the claim ultimately leads to a lawsuit being filed in the future, 
we will meet with the Village Board at that time in Closed Session to review the particulars 
of the claims and our analysis.  Such discussion would be privileged and confidential.  
Because such discussion should be confined to such a setting, we do not at this time 
share our confidential analysis of the claims, our analysis and reasons for disallowance 
since it contains attorney-client and work product privileged information and strategy. 
 
 Should you have any questions or concerns about this matter, please feel free to 
reach out to me. 
 


Very truly yours, 


 


/s/ Remzy D. Bitar 


 


MUNICIPAL LAW & LITIGATION GROUP, S.C. 
 





		Village Board Agenda May 6, 2019

		5. Village Board Minutes 4-15-2019

		6A. Massie letter

		8A.  Memo and Water-Sewer Agreement VOPP and Bristol

		Amended and Restated Water and Sanitary Sewer Service Agreement



		8B. Ord 19-08

		8C. Res 19-12

		8D. Res 19-15

		2019-04-30 Request



		8E. MOD Super Fast Pizza Agent Change - Henneberry

		8F. Cheddars Scratch Kitchen Agent Change - SCHWANZ

		8G. Resolution 19-13 Building Safety Month

		8H. Resolution 19-14 National Public Works Week

		8I. Claim disallowance - WE Energies

		8J. 1 Notice of Injury and Claim for Damages - Claimant - John Gasser

		8J. 2Notice of Injury and Claim for Damages - Claimant - Idala Strouse Ga.._

		8J. Disallowance Gasser








